



Contents

Introduction
Introduction to MACRO environment
Menu Bar (drop down menus)3
Toolbar (where the Function Buttons are found)5
Home page and available Reports (simple listings, quality reports, etc.)5
Forms' colour coding scheme6
How to search for an existing Subject (patient)7
Uniqueness Check7
Basic Terminology7
How to Search for a subject / How to Filter your caseload / Quick access to subject records, including <i>recent</i> subjects list page8
How to deal with a case of a "Previous HSCT performed in another centre" (use Access Request
Form)
Registration: How to create a new Subject (patient) $\rightarrow 1^{st}$ HSCT
Creating a New Subject using the icon or the toolbar menu16
How to use the Schedule QuickView20
Entering Data
Types of Questions (Comments and Notes)22
Help provided (Contextual texts, Help Files, Multimedia, Hyperlinks)
Data Entry
Saving data and moving between Forms29
Shortcuts
Navigation (answering Questions inside the Forms)32
Repeating Question Groups (RQGs)
Validation (Warning and Rejection messages)35
Navigation (how to continue or finish a registration)40
Diagnosis Visit
Diagnosis Visit
Chromosome Analysis – Molecular Markers – Involvement – Non cell-based treatment (note that the Non-Cell Based Treatment is recorded in the following Visit (1 st line))
1st line (Pre-HSCT) Visit – Non-cell based Treatment Form
Pre-HSCT Visit (Mobilisation / Collection Form)
Transplant Visit
Day 100 Visit

Annual Follow Up Visit	59
Modifying existing data	61
Complex Cases (examples)	63
Centre/Site with Access to a Subject that was created in another centre	63
How to record a Simultaneous Diagnosis	65
Special case for users with Access to more than one Site or Study	66

Introduction

Welcome to the MACRO User Guide. MACRO is the database that the EBMT Registry is using to record clinical data, including aspects of the diagnosis and disease, first-line treatments, HSCT or cell-therapy-associated procedures, transplant type, donor type, stem cell source, complications and outcome. For instructions on how to get a MACRO User Account, please refer to our website, under The Registry / Data Submission: <u>https://www.ebmt.org/registry/data-submission</u>

Logon page's link: https://eu1.macroedc.com/ebmt

Introduction to MACRO environment

Menu Bar (drop down menus)

The Menu Bar is consisted of 4 options:



FILE

The New Subject and the Print buttons can also be found in the Toolbar. PLEASE NOTE: there will be more options here, once inside a Subject (in relation to Save and Move between forms).



All of the available options above can also be found in the Toolbar (see Toolbar chapter below).



PLEASE NOTE: none of the Tools options can be found in the Toolbar.

ELP		* @	0	Index		P	#

The Help-Index can only be found in the above location. (PLEASE NOTE: MACRO help refers to radio buttons as "option buttons")



Toolbar (where the Function Buttons are found)



You can hover over icons to see their descriptions. From left to right, the Function Buttons are:

- Create a new study subject
- Print the current screen
- Open your Home Page
- Open the Subject List page
- Open the Recent Subjects List page
- Open the Search Panel
- Open the Data Reporter
- Open the Subjects QuickView panel
- Schedule QuickView
- Symbols and Function Keys
- View Missing Data (n) {n= number of missing items}
- View planned SDVs (n) {n= number of planned SDVs}
- View queried SDVs (n) {n= number of queried SDVs}
- View raised DCRs (n) {n= number of raised SDVs}
- View responded DCRs (n) {n= number of responded SDVs}
- Recipients (Entire caseload that can be filtered by field(s))

PLEASE NOTE: once you load a subject in MACRO, there will be more options available to you in the **Toolbar**, which are related to Data Entry:



which can also be found in the Menu Bar under FILE.

Home page and available Reports (simple listings, quality reports, etc.)



You can access the Home Page by clicking on the Home Button in the Menu Bar:

or under **VIEW** in the Menu Bar. On the Home Page you can find a variety of useful reports in the form of hyperlinks.



Forms' colour coding scheme

The Forms in MACRO are coloured coded, which means that you can tell what type of form you are filling in by its colour (for example, a certain Form is always one particular colour, regardless of which Visit it appears). The same stands for the Questions' font colour inside the forms (for example, mandatory questions appear in Dark Red, section headers are in Blue, etc.)

Hospital identification of patient		
Hospital Unique Patient Number (UPN) or code	6546846416	<i>~</i>
	Do NOT leave this item empty	
Additional patient identification for this team	(optional)	

Please see all fonts appearing in MACRO below:

	Description	Font (Type Face)	Style	Appearance
1	Form header 01/ Section headers Lvl 1	Arial	Bold	Header 01
2	Form header 01/ Section headers Lvl 2	Arial	Bold	Header 01
3	Form header 02/ Section sub-headers	Arial	Bold	Header 02
4	Form question entries (responses)	Arial	Regular	Lymphoma
5	Optional Question (Q)caption (default)	Arial	Regular	Source
6	Derived Q style	Arial Black	Bold	Active
7	RQG captions	Arial	Bold	RQG caption
8	RQG Preset Core Questions font	Arial Black	Bold	Epirubicine
9	Hidden Q caption	Arial	Regular	Hidden
10	Mandatory Q caption	Arial	Regular	Mandatory
11	Derived Q caption	Arial	Regular	Derived
12	Form/ question comments	Arial	Italic	Comments
13	General/ Status Instructions	Arial	Bold	Active
14	Dynamic navigation information	Arial	Bold	Instruction
15	Dynamic navigation instructions	Arial	Bold	Instruction
16	Dynamic navigation caption	Arial	Bold	Instruction
17	Category list value	Arial	Regular	Value
18	Category list caption	Arial	Regular	Caption
19	Hyperlinks	Arial	Italic	Study links

How to search for an existing Subject (patient)

Uniqueness Check

It is crucial to search for existing patients before starting your data entry. This is in order to avoid duplicating registrations. There is an inbuilt <u>Uniqueness Check</u> in Macro, which is a mechanism that reduces the risk of users creating duplicate subjects. However, we do recommend that you do a *Search* before you create a new subject. The questions that are related to the Uniqueness Check will have a font colour of their own (as per the Colour Coding Scheme above). The items that are being examined are: Date of Birth, Initials, UPN, Gender, HSCT Date, Country and CIC.

Basic Terminology

The way to refer to patient records in MACRO is by using their "**Subject Label**", which is a <u>unique</u> number allocated to a patient record by the database the moment you first create a new subject ("Subject" = Patient Record). The Subject Label carries no information on the site or the subject, and can therefore be used as a <u>pseudonymised</u> key.



The **Subject ID** is *another <u>unique</u>* number that is incrementally increased, again allocated by the database, **but for each Site**. For example, the record 1234 could exist both for Site 222 and for Site 333. The Subject ID can be used to identify patient records, but *only* at a Site level.

PLEASE NOTE: the way that a patient record appears in data entry is by including the Study, the Site and the Subject Label.

The **UPN** stands for Unique Patient Number (or Hospital Number), which is the number allocated to patients by the centres (sites) where they were treated, and it is used as one of the basic identifiers of a patient (mandatory field in MACRO).

The **Study** is the way MACRO refers to what the EBMT is calling a Registry, meaning the database's project that has all the information on patient disease and treatment. The EBMT has 2 studies in MACRO: the patients' "study" and the donors' "study". (NOT to be confused with a Clinical Study (=trial) a patient may be participating in)

The **Subject Group** (Virtual Registry) is the way MACRO is *logically grouping* records, either of patients or of donors (depending on the Study), with a certain characteristic in common (e.g.: the same country for National Registries, the same disease for Working Parties, the same age for Paediatrics or for Adults, etc.). These are assigned via User Roles (Data Entry, Administrator, etc.).

The **Site** is the way MACRO refers to hospitals/centres performing treatments.

The **CIC** stands for Centre Identification Code and is a unique number allocated to sites/hospitals by the EBMT as an identifier of the centre.

The **ProMISe UIC** is the old patient number allocated to a patient record by the EBMT's previous database Promise, and it stands for Unique Identification Code (UIC). The UIC is relevant only to patient records that existed in the old database Promise and got migrated over to MACRO. For records that have been migrated from the previous database Promise, the number will be read-only at the bottom of the "Subject Registration" form:

Schedule QuickView ×	Eile View Iools Help	Database :EBM	IT_Test Role :DataEntry User :Asterios Kasmiris
MedB_PreProd3/c0200/1000015		🖬 🗙 🏠 👒 🐔 🔍 🖪 🕅 🥅	* 🛱 🛱 🕨 🕨 🗩 🖉 🔍
Registration 2019/01/17 (200 8741654696)			
V Summary and Navigation	Visit:	Registration eForm:	Subject Registration
V Centre (200 - 8741654696)	Visit Date	2019/01/17 eform Date:	
V Subject personal details	Laboratory:	None selected	
Studies and Trials			
Diagnosis-1 2011/11/11 (NHL Med-A)	Subject Registrat	ion	
Ist line-1 2012/06/21 (Chemo)			
Non HSCT	Unique Identification Code given by MACRO (UIC)	1000015 🖌	
Pre HSCT-1 (BM auto Med-A)	given by mixer(o (ore)		
💼 🔺 Transplant-1 2012/12/12 (Autograft)			
er ✓ Followup-1 2013/12/12 (Rel/Prog)	Registration Date	2019/01/17 *	
Followup-1[2]	Registering centre	200	
e Diagnosis-2	Registering centre UPN	8741654696	If you need to make a correction to the UPN, return to the Centre eForm to do the correction
n- 1st line-2	Patient sex	Male	
w ✓ Pre HSCT-2		Female	
Transplant-2 2014/02/02 (Allograft)		• Female	
	ABO Group	A 👻 🖌	
e Followup-2	Rh factor	Absent 👻 🖌	
Diagnosis-3			
e. 1st line-3			
Pre HSCT-3	The information below has be	een imported from ProMISe and is not edit	able
e Day 100-3	ProMISe UIC		
Followup-3	(if applicable)		
· Diagnosis-4	Centre number (ID)	Patient number (IDAA)	CRID
1st line-4		(1044)	
Pre HSCT-4			
Transplant-4			
→ Day 100-4			

Regarding any of the concepts described above, please refer to MACRO help.

How to **Search** for a subject / How to **Filter** your caseload / Quick access to subject records, including *recent* subjects list page

There are several ways/icons in MACRO by which you can <u>view</u> your caseload and <u>search</u> for subjects with certain characteristic(s). You can try them all and see what serves your purpose best.

One way to **<u>view</u>** your caseload is to click on the button **Subject List** page:



which will open a list that shows the following pieces of information (subject per row):

Status	Study	Site	Subject ID	Subject Label	Last Modified
	MedB_PreProd3	All Sites 💌			
	Med8_PreProd3	c0200	1	1000001	2019/01/28 13:41:15
	MedB_PreProd3	c0201	1	1000003	2018/12/02 19:02:30
	MedB_PreProd3	c0210	1	1000008	2018/12/02 19:03:15
	MedB_PreProd3	c0299	1	1000009	2019/01/16 14:39:00
A	MedB_PreProd3	c0516	1	1000010	2019/01/02 16:05:07
	Med8_PreProd3	c0715	1		2019/02/02 14:26:19
•	MedB_PreProd3	c0744	1	1000094	2018/12/02 19:46:57
A	MedB_PreProd3	c0876	1	1000033	2019/01/09 15:05:56
	Med8_PreProd3	deleted	1		2018/12/02 12:20:00
	MedB_PreProd3	c0200	2	1000002	2018/12/02 19:02:12
	Med8_PreProd3	c0201	2	1000004	2019/01/31 16:07:43

On the right side of the button above, you can find the same button, but with a green arrow pointing downwards, which is called **Recent Subject List** page (another way to <u>view</u> subjects):



This will load the 10 most recent subjects you have accessed. This number can be changed in your settings under Tools-Settings, according to your preferences:

Options		×
Environment General Web Schedule DCR/SDV/Note Browser Printing Clinical Coding	Number of records per page 50 This is the number of records that will be displayed on each page. 50 Maximum records limit 1,000 This is the maximum number of records that will be retrieved by a search. 10 This is the maximum number of recently accessed subjects to be displayed 10 Reports Homepage URL	÷
	Checking this option will cause the logged in user's credentials to be HTTP posted to the Homepage URL Reset Defaults OK	Cancel

If you click on the icon below, which is called **Subject QuickView** panel:



a side panel appears on the left hand side (another way to view your subjects), that lists all your subjects for quick access, as shown below:

Subjects QuickView	× Elle View	/ Icols Help	Database :EBMT_Test Role :DataEntry User :Asterios Kasmiris			
Donor_OR/s8402/1000001	* 🔒 🖨 🐇	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	► 0.0			
Donor_OR/s8402/(2)						
Donor_OR/t0999/1000007	Status	Study	Site	Subject ID	Subject Label	Last Modified
Donor_OR/t0999/1000009		MedB_PreProd3 -	All Sites 👻			
Donor_OR/t0999/1000010						
Donor_OR/t0999/1000011		MedB_PreProd3	c0200	1	1000001	2019/01/28 13:41:15
Donor_OR/t0999/1000012		MedB_PreProd3	c0201	1	1000003	2018/12/02 19:02:30
Donor_OR/t0999/1000013	•	MedB_PreProd3	c0210	1	1000008	2018/12/02 19:03:15
lonor_OR/t0999/1000014		MedB_PreProd3	c0299	1	1000009	2019/01/16 14:39:00
Donor_OR/t0999/1000015	A	Med8_PreProd3	c0516	1	1000010	2019/01/02 16:05:07
Donor_OR/t0999/1000016		MedB_PreProd3	c0715	1		2019/02/02 14:26:19
Donor_OR/t0999/1000017	•	MedB_PreProd3	c0744	1	1000094	2018/12/02 19:46:57
Donor_OR/t0999/1000018	A	MedB_PreProd3	c0876	1	1000033	2019/01/09 15:05:56
Donor_OR/t0999/(3)		MedB_PreProd3	deleted	1		2018/12/02 12:20:00
Janor OR/t0999/(5)		Med8_PreProd3	c0200	2	1000002	2018/12/02 19:02:12
Danar_OR/t0999/(6)	•	Med8_PreProd3	c0201	2	1000004	2019/01/31 16:07:43
lanar_OR/t0999/(9)	~	Med8_PreProd3	c0210	2	1000011	2019/01/14 16:01:15
Donor OR/t0999/(11)		MedB_PreProd3	c0299	2	1000006	2019/01/10 12:54:15
lonor_OR/t0999/(12)		MedB_PreProd3	c0516	2	1000011	2018/12/02 17:36:50
Danar_OR/t0999/(17)	•	Med8_PreProd3	c0715	2	1000027	2019/02/07 16:16:06
AedB_PreProd3/c0200/1000001		MedB_PreProd3	c0744	2	1000205	2018/12/02 20:38:32
fedB PreProd3/c0200/1000001	•	Med8_PreProd3	c0876	2	Not registered	2019/01/09 15:10:45
Aed8_PreProd3/c0200/1000002		MedB_PreProd3	d0999	2	1000052	2018/12/02 19:22:45
AedB_PreProd3/c0200/1000015	~	Med8_PreProd3	c0200	3	1000001	2019/01/24 13:01:39
AedB_PreProd3/c0200/1000016		MedB_PreProd3	c0201	3	1000005	2018/12/02 19:02:48
AedB PreProd3/c0200/1000018		MedB_PreProd3	c0210	3	Not registered	2019/01/14 15:57:52
fed8_PreProd3/c0200/1000019		Med8_PreProd3	c0299	3		2019/01/10 12:48:57
ledB_PreProd3/c0200/1000021		MedB_PreProd3	c0516	3	1000012	2018/12/02 19:04:3
ledB_PreProd3/c0200/1000026		Med8_PreProd3	c0744	3	1000055	2018/12/02 17:39:39
led8_PreProd3/c0200/1000051		MedB_PreProd3	c0876	3	1000034	2019/01/09 15:10:4
fed8_PreProd3/c0200/1000031		Med8_PreProd3	d0999	3	1000053	2018/12/02 19:23:2
ted8_PreProd3/c0200/1000084 fed8_PreProd3/c0200/1000086		Med8_PreProd3	c0200	4		2018/12/14 14:23:08

There is a variety of ways to <u>search</u> for subjects with certain characteristic(s). The one called **Recipients**, is found on the right hand side of the toolbar and is a magnifying glass with the letter R inside:



This is an <u>Index</u> of your entire caseload with the facility of performing a <u>search</u> by using subjects' main identifiers, such as subject label, date of birth, gender, diagnosis, HSCT date, etc.

Label	Last modification		Centre		UPN	Date of birth		Age group		Sex		Diagnosis	Main treatment	HSC	T date	Cell therapy date	Las	st seen
T		T		T	T		T		T		T	T		T		T	T	
1000001	2019/02/14 16:	09:34	200		CMML_88	1965/04/05		Adult		Male		CMML		200	3/07/07		200	03/10/15
1000003	2019/02/11 13:	00:18	201		111	1999/07/03				Male		Primary immune deficiency						
1000012	2019/02/12 14:3	29:03	202	1	yo_st	1978/02/02		Adult		Male		CML		200	5/01/01		200	05/01/01
1000016	2019/02/14 15:5	52:48	203	1	992762	1948/08/10		Adult		Female		Precursor Lymphoid Neoplasms		201	5/06/28		201	16/05/14
1000173	2019/02/12 13:4	47:54	205		mds_al	1980/01/01		Adult		Male		Bone marrow failure: Congenital		201	5/01/01		201	16/05/01
Not registered	2019/02/11 14:2	28:51																
1000019	2019/02/12 14	44:54	214	1	5587	1949/07/06		Adult		Female		Mixed phenotype: T/myeloid		201	5/10/11			
1000247	2019/02/14 09:1	17:09	224		UCL1234	1985/06/01		Adult		Female		Multiple myeloma		201	7/08/05	2017/10/22	201	18/08/15
1000022	2019/02/11 13:0	02:16	230		115	1955/12/16				Male		Multiple myeloma						
1000028	2019/02/12 16:	34:23	232		AS269875			Adult				Precursor Lymphoid Neoplasms		201	7/01/01		201	18/02/05
1000032	2019/02/11 13:	02:55	234	1	987654	1974/08/01		Adult		Male		Myeloproliferative neoplasia		201	7/05/18		201	17/08/25
1000035	2019/02/11 13:	03:19	247		750121	1959/06/26		Adult		Female		Systemic sclerosis		201	5/01/01			
1000037	2019/02/14 15:2	26:52	271		984631634	1985/04/02		Adult		Female		Precursor Lymphoid Neoplasms		201	2/12/12			
1000040	2019/02/15 104	41:39	299	1	8000001	1970/10/10		Adult		Female		Solid tumour (not Breast)		201	8/10/04			
1000044	2019/02/11 13:	04:53	306		79845612213211321KV	1956/07/18		Adult		Male		PLL T-cell		201	7/01/01			
1000048	2019/02/11 13:0	05:21	308	1	8415635768	1992/05/02		Adult		Male		Multiple myeloma		201	8/05/05		201	14/05/05

You can use it by typing on any of the items listed on the top row, and then pressing Enter. You can type only *part* of the label you are looking for, like for example in the Diagnosis, you can type "ML" and you will get in your results AMLs, CMLs, CMMLs, JMMLs, etc. as shown below:

Date of birth	Age group	Sex	Diagnosis
	T	T	T ML T
1965/04/05	Adult	Male	CMML
1978/02/02	Adult	Male	CML
1980/01/01	Adult	Male	AML & Related Precursor Neoplasms
1950/01/01		Male	AML & Related Precursor Neoplasms
1965/08/15	Adult	Female	CMML
1965/04/05	Adult	Male	JMML
1965/05/02	Adult	Male	JMML
1965/04/05	Adult	Male	AML & Related Precursor Neoplasms

What is more, you can use more than just one item to filter your results even more. For example, in the search above, you can add the Sex filter as well (typed simply "fe" for females):

Date of birth	Age group	Sex	Diagnosis
	T	T fe	T ML T
1965/08/15	Adult	Female	CMML
1989/06/05	Adult	Female	AML & Related Precursor Neoplasms
1981/12/17	Adult	Female	CML
1956/07/08	Adult	Female	CML
1956/01/05		Female	AML & Related Precursor Neoplasms
1989/06/05	Adult	Female	AML & Related Precursor Neoplasms
1965/10/20	Adult	Female	CML
1965/10/20	Adult	Female	CML
1981/12/17	Adult	Female	CML
1958/04/02	Adult	Female	AML & Related Precursor Neoplasms
1965/10/20	Adult	Female	CML
1989/06/05	Adult	Female	AML & Related Precursor Neoplasms
1964/11/05		Female	AML & Related Precursor Neoplasms
1988/09/05	Adult	Female	JMML

PLEASE NOTE: if your search's results are many, they will appear in many pages. You can see the number of pages produced at the bottom-right corner:

2017/01/11
12/03/03
2017/11/20
2019/02/10
2015/11/21
2001/04/01
2015/03/17 💌
•
Page 1 of 3, items 1 to 50 of 142.

and you can navigate through the pages by clicking on the arrows on the bottom-left corner:

Change page: 🛛 🖌 🕨						
1000041	2019/02/11 13:04:13					
1000038	2019/02/11 13:03:44					
1000179	2019/02/11 13:03:24					
1000249	2019/02/11 15:03:10					

Another useful feature this search offers is the available options you get when you click on the funnel (Filter icon) found on the right side of each of the items:

UPN	Date of birth	Age group
		1
	NoFilter	J
992762	Contains	Adult
5587	DoesNotContain	Adult
UCL1234	StartsWith	Adult
750121	EndsWith	Adult
984631634	EqualTo	Adult
8000001	NotEqualTo	Adult
750121	1959/06/26	Adult

For example, if you know the subject you are looking for was born 2010, but you do not know the month and day, you can type "2010" in the Date of Birth and select StartsWith. (Note that the dates' format is always yyyy/mm/dd)

Another way to <u>search</u> for subjects with specific characteristics is by clicking on the icon called **Search Panel**, as shown below:



which opens a side panel on the left hand side of the screen:

		*	🔒 👄 🤷 👒	🍇 🔍 🖪 📓 📰	• 🖻 🐺 1				
iearch Detail Level		*	Label	Last modification	Centre	UPN	Date of birth	Age group	Sex
letail	All	*		T		T	T	T	T
General									
Study	MedB_PreProd3	•	1000054	2019/02/12 16:05:00	513	mds_al	1980/01/01	Adult	Male
Site	All Sites		1000020	2019/02/11 13:01:51	214	7777	1950/01/01		Male
Subject Group	All Subject Groups	•	1000163	2019/02/11 14:59:18	203	46	1965/04/05	Adult	Male
Subject			Not registered	2019/02/09 15:27:58	513	68464141	1989/06/05	Adult	Female
	ID ID Label		1000207	2019/02/11 13:29:49	594	10110001	1953/09/02	Adult	Male
			1000047	2019/02/11 16:10:14	306	123456	1950/01/02	Adult	Male
Statuses			1000221	2019/02/11 13:32:04	718	7777	1950/01/01		Male
Select/Clear All			1000274	2019/02/12 15:22:26	744	gjhgcfg345	1961/11/27	Adult	Male
			Not registered	2019/02/05 20:33:26	513	s16fs1d6f	1962/05/04		Male
Comments		•	1000136	2019/02/11 13:18:54	516	A-195	2017/01/21	Paediatric	Male
.omments Vote			Not registered	2019/02/05 20:34:33	513	nip1	1950/02/28	Adult	Male
lote		· · ·	Not registered	2019/02/05 20:34:54	513	1sadf3s132df	1963/05/04	Adult	Male
rozen/Locked			1000159	2019/02/11 13:22:31	876	758430KV	1956/01/05		Female
rozen/Locked		•	1000142	2019/02/11 13:19:50	516	4556546KV	1956/04/14	Adult	Male
			1000235	2019/02/11 13:33:52	876	68464141	1989/06/05	Adult	Female
OCRs/SDV Status			1000065	2019/02/11 13:08:28	513	7777	1960/04/07	Adult	Male
CR	None	^	•						
JCR	Raised	-	Change page: H	< > H					
		-							
DV.	None Planned	•							
Study Level									
fisit		Ŧ							
Form		•							
Juestion									
User		-							
Jser		•							
Date Range									
earch	None	•							
	15/02/2019	¥							
rom									
From Fo	15/02/2019	w.							
	15/02/2019	•							

This MACRO inbuilt search function is to be used in particular when you are looking for subjects with a certain **Status**. As you can see below, there is section where you select the type of Status you are interested in (e.g.: Missing, Warning, OK Warning, etc.):

Statuses	
Select/Clear All	
Comments	•
Note	•

You can also search for subjects that have **Comments** or **Notes**. (For more on these please see chapter "Types of Questions" in this guide)

Symbols and Function Keys						
C Status	٦					
🔀 Invalid						
Not Applicable						
🖌 ОК						
oK Warning						
💓 Missing						
Not Available						
🔺 Warning						
🕕 Inform						
Dote 📜						
🤛 Comment						

Possible indications for a Question's **Status**:

Further down on the same panel, you can search for subjects that are Frozen or Locked, or that have DCRs or SDVs in them:

Frozen/Locked		
Frozen/Locked		¥
DCRs/SDV Status		
DCR	None Raised	* *
SDV	None Planned	▲ ▼

Of course, you can use combinations of these. For example, you can search for specific Visits or Forms that have at least one Missing item, or an unanswered DCR, or are Frozen or Locked:

Statuses	
Select/Clear All	
Comments	T
Note	
Frozen/Locked	
Frozen/Locked	•
DCRs/SDV Status	
	Responded
DCR	Closed
	Received
SDV	None
SUV	Planned
Study Level	
Visit	Diagnosis-1
eForm	Centre-MedAB Selection
Question	TEAM_THIS •

After you select your criteria, you click on the green arrow pointing right, on the top of this panel:



and the results will appears on the main screen to the right:

Search Data 💌 🔎 🖛 📻 🧷 🕨		× Đ	Yew Iosi		= • • • •		ining Role :DataEntry User :Asterio	is Kasmiris					
Search Detail Level			A 18 -8	·s · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·									
Detail	All	S	udy/Site/Subject	∆ Visit △ eFo	rm 🛆								
			Question		Value	Date and Time	Database date and time	Transfer	User	Full User Name	Thesaurus Name/Version/Language	Decode	Coding Status
General	*				\$	2	\$	\$ I	0 0		♥	\$	\$
Study	MedB_PreProd3 •		Study/Site/Subled	: MedB_PreProd3/c	0201/1000262								
Site	All Sites •		Visit: Diagnos	s-1.									
Subject Group	All Subject Groups		eForm: St	age									
Subject			KI-67 (Pri	liferation index)		2019/02/11 11:1	3:07 2019/02/11 11:13:35	Not export	ter km	Kat Manolidou			
	ID U Label	8	Study/Site/Subject	: MedB_PreProd3/c	0201/1000263								
			Visit: Diagnos	s-1 v/ *									
Statuses	*		eForm: St	age									
Select/Clear All			Stage			2019/02/11 13:4	4:4: 2019/02/11 13:44:45	Not export	ter Is	Lucas Stolarczyk			
□ 🖗 🖉 🌞 🗆 🔺 🗆 🖌			Systemic	symptoms		2019/02/11 13:4	4:45 2019/02/11 13:44:45	Not export	ter Is	Lucas Stolarczyk			
		8	Study/Site/Subject	: MedB_PreProd3/c	0202/1000250								
Comments	· · · · · ·		Visit: Diagnos	5-1.									
Note	•		eForm: St	age									
Frozen/Locked			Internatio	nal prognostic index	: (1 💌	2019/02/11 11:1	7:49 2019/02/11 11:18:04	Not export	tei bmt8	Helen Baldomero			
			KI-67 (Pri	liferation index)		2019/02/11 11:1	7:46 2019/02/11 11:18:04	Not export	ter bmt8	Helen Baldomero			
Frozen/Locked	•	8	Study/Site/Subject	: MedB_PreProd3/c	0513/1000077.								
DCRs/SDV Status			Visit: Diagnos	s-1 *									
			eForm: St	age.									
DCR	None		KI-67 (Pri	liferation index)		2019/02/04 16:1	4:5: 2019/02/04 16:14:54	Not export	tei cr	Carmen Ruiz de Elv	ira		
	Raised *	8	Study/Site/Subject	: MedB_PreProd3/c	0513/Not registered								
	None		Visit: Diagnosi	s-1 <mark>4</mark>									
SDV	Planned *		eForm: St	age									
			Stage			2019/02/05 13:3	2:57 2019/02/05 13:32:58	Not export	tei cr	Carmen Ruiz de Elv	ira		
Study Level			KI-67 (Pro	liferation index)		2019/02/04 22:3	4:18 2019/02/04 22:34:19	Not export	tei cr	Carmen Ruiz de Elv	ira		
Visit	Diagnosis-1		IPSS Risk	score		2019/02/05 13:4	7:3(2019/02/05 13:47:31	Not export	tei cr	Carmen Ruiz de Elv	ira		
eForm	Stage		Stage			2019/02/05 13:5	8:5: 2019/02/05 13:58:53	Not export	tei cr	Carmen Ruiz de Elv	ira		
Question	All Questions •		Systemic	symptoms		2019/02/05 13:5	8:5: 2019/02/05 13:58:53	Not export	tei cr	Carmen Ruiz de Elv	ira		
			Study/Site/Subject	: MedB_PreProd3/c	0524/1000270								
User			Visit: Diagnos	s-140									
User	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		😑 eForm: St	age.									
			Macrogles	sy		2019/02/09 15:2	6:28 2019/02/09 15:26:28	Not export	tei cr	Carmen Ruiz de Elv	ira		
Date Range			Periorbita	bleeding		2019/02/09 15:2	6:28 2019/02/09 15:26:28	Not export	tei cr	Carmen Ruiz de Elv	ira		
Search	None •		Shoulder	pad sign		2019/02/09 15:2	6:28 2019/02/09 15:26:28	Not export	tei cr	Carmen Ruiz de Elv	ira		
From	15/02/2019 *	8	Study/Site/Subject	: MedB_PreProd3/c	0594/1000208								
То	15/02/2019 -		Visit: Diagnos	s-1 *									
			eForm: St	age									
Clinical Coding		1											

You can also Save a search of yours to use again in the future by clicking on the disk icon, or search for an already existing search of yours by clicking on the magnifying glass:



Regarding any of the concepts described above, please refer to MACRO help.

Another way to **<u>search</u>** for subjects with specific characteristics is by using the icon below:

<u>F</u> ile	View	Too	ols	<u>H</u> elp							Data	abase	:EBMT_
2	- 🏠		-		R	A	e	 ۲	P	#			R

called **Data Reporter**, which opens a list of reports on the main screen:

Ele Yew Icols Help 8 👄 🖄 😨 📽 🔍 🖾 📓	Database :EBMT_Training Role :DataEntry User As	terios Kasmiris				
Data Search						
New Search Load Search	Select Study 👻					Clear Save search
Search Queue and Results						Refresh
Search Name	Repeat Frequency	Status	Date Of Last Activity	View	Download	Action
DateHSCT Dg	Once	Complete	14/02/2019 11:44:36	Columnar Frequency	CSV Excel STATA SPSS SAS	Delete
DgxTypexLast	Once	Complete	10/02/2019 18:10:10	Columnar Frequency	CSV Excel STATA SPSS SAS	Delete
Centres	Once	Complete	10/02/2019 17:40:01	Columnar Erepuency	CSV Excel STATA SPSS SAS	Delete
Centre	Once	Complete	08/02/2019 17:39:56	Columnar Frequency	CSV Excel STATA SPSS SAS	Delete

This function is for more specialised searches/reports for subjects with even more specific characteristics, for example, with a certain diagnosis, a certain type of HSCT, a certain patient status, etc. The results of such reports will be produced in the format that the **Recipients** search mentioned above appears, if you click on the Columnar option found under View:

			Clear Save search
			Refresh
Vie	w	Download	Action
Co	lumnar Freguency	CSV Excel STATA SPSS SAS	Delete
Co	umnar Frequency	CSV Excel STATA SPSS SAS	Delete
Co	umnar Frequency	CSV Excel STATA SPSS SAS	Delete
Co	lumnar Frequency	CSV Excel STATA SPSS SAS	Delete

which you can then filter more:

Data Searcl										
New Search				Select Study					Clear	e search
earch Que	eue and Results									Queue
Site	Subject	Label	Subject ID	V_DIAG1_1_F_DISEASE_1_DIS_CLASS_U	V_DIAG1_1_F_DISEASE_1_DISMCLFD	V_COLL1_F_HSCT_COLL_1_VTRANTYP	V_TRANS1_1_F_PATSTAT_1_VPATSTAT	V_FUP100_1_1_F_SURVIVAL_1_DATE_LASTSEEN	V_FUP100_1_1_F_PATSTAT_1_VPATSTAT	V_COLL2_1_F_HSCT_CO
	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T	T
c0200	100000		1	CMML	MDS & MPN	Allogeneic	Alive	2002/08/01	Alive	Autologous
c0200	100000		2	PLL T-cell	Chronic leukaemia					
c0200	100016		3	Multiple myeloma	Plasma cell disorders	Autologous	Alive	2017/03/03	Alive	
c0200	100016	9	4	Hodgkins	Lymphoma	Autologous	Alive			
c0200	100024		5	NHL	Lymphoma	Allogeneic	Alive			
c0200	100016		6	Precursor Lymphoid Neoplasms	Acute leukaemia					
c0200	100024	5	7	NHL	Lymphoma	Autologous	Alive	2013/03/20	Alive	Allogeneic
	100000	3	1	Auto-immune	Auto-immune diseases					
c0201		1	2	Haemoglobinopathy	Haemoglobinopathies	Allogeneic	Alive			
c0201 c0201	100000						Alive	2014/07/12	Alive	

How to deal with a case of a "**Previous HSCT performed in another centre**" (use Access Request Form)

All data for a single patient should be entered under one Subject Label, including subsequent treatments (HSCTs, Cell Therapies, Additional treatment, etc.). This is to avoid creating duplications (2 patient records for the same patient). Patients transferred to other centres for further treatments (HSCTs or Cell Therapies) must always keep their original Subject Label. If your patient had a prior transplant or cell therapy elsewhere, please use the form titled "*Data Access Request Form for a Patient Given Previous Treatment in Other Centre*" to request access to their existing record, found in this webpage: https://www.ebmt.org/registry/data-submission

After the access to that specific patient record is granted to your Site, the new record will appear in your caseload (it might be that you need to refresh to make it appear).

PLEASE NOTE: this scenario is explained in more detail at the Chapter "Complex Cases (examples)".

<u>Registration: How to create a new Subject (patient) → 1st HSCT</u>

PLEASE NOTE: there is a separate chapter with cases of Subsequent HSCT. This chapter is for the case of a 1^{st} HSCT, where you are the centre that is creating a patient who does not exist in the database. It is assumed that you first Searched whether the patient record exists already, before you proceeded with the creation of a new Subject.

Creating a **New Subject** using the icon or the toolbar menu

You can directly create a new subject by clicking on the first icon from your Toolbar:



Alternatively, you can use the Menu Bar, under File-New Subject. Following either method, a window appears where you select your Study (=not the normal behaviour for 90% of users) and your Site (most users will have access to 1 study and 1 site):

Create New Subject		
Please select a study and s Studies: Donor_OR MedB_PreProd	ite for the new subject. Show site code: Sites: bsbmt Swiss Test centre	
	Site Code - s8401 Site Description - bsbmt	*
Open new subject		
	OK Cancel	

Once you click OK to confirm Study and Site selection, you are taken to the newly created patient's **Subject Visit Schedule**:



where the only active form you can use is the **Centre** Form from the **Registration** Block. Note that when a form is Active, it is coloured, but Not Active forms are greyed out:

<u>File View Tools H</u> elp	a 🖪 🖬 🔹 🖡			Training Ro	ole :DataEntry	User :As
MedB_PreProd3/c0981/(13)	Registration	Diagnosis-1	1st line-1	Non HSCT	Pre HSCT-1	Transp
► Centre	B					
Subject personal details	=					
Subject Registration						

Note that the hierarchical structure in MACRO is like this: Block \rightarrow Visit \rightarrow Form.

Med8_PreProd3/c0981/(13) Centre	Registration Diagnosis-	1st line-1 Non H												
								_						
Centre	-													
Subject personal details														
Subject Registration														
1st E	Block 2r	d Block (includ Therag	ing Non-HSCT y is the 1st Tre	Visit, used C	INLY IF a Ce	llular	3rd E	Block			4th Blo	ock		

So, a Block is consisted of Visits and a Visit is consisted of Forms. The Visits are indicated by differently coloured columns and the Forms appear in rows, with their names showing in the left hand side column. Not all forms appear in all visits, as they may not be applicable, and some may appear in multiple visits.

PLEASE NOTE: the 2nd Block is different to any subsequent ones, in that it has an extra visit: the **Cell Therapy** visit, called **Non-HSCT**. The 1st Block is the Registration Block that appears only once at the very beginning of a newly created subject. The reason for this in only for the case where a patient is receiving their first treatment ever and it is a Cell Therapy; any other cell therapies that do not fit the above criteria will be reported using the Annual Follow Up.

For a detailed description of the content and distribution of Blocks, please refer to the MACRO Help.

After you double-click on the Centre form of the Registration Visit in the Subject Visit Schedule above, the Form Centre opens, along with the Schedule QuickView in the left side panel.

Schedule QuickView	File View Iools Help Database :EBMT_Test Role :DataEntry User :Asterios Kasmiris
MedB_PreProd/c0201/(2)	▲ ♣ ➡ ➡ ♥ ➡ ¥ ☆ % % ♥ □ x ☆ % % ™ □ □ □ □ ■ • ₽ ₽ ► ► ₽
Registration	
🗷 Centre	Visit: Registration eForm: Centre
III Subject personal details	
Subject Information	Visit Date eform Date:
Diagnosis-1	Laboratory: None selected
1st line-1	
Cell Therapy	Control with access to this potientic data
Pre HSCT-1	Centre with access to this patient's data
Transplant-1	Registration centre
Day 100-1	
Followup-1	Registration Centre 201
Diagnosis-2	Team number Use the same Team number as in the EBMT membership list
1st line-2	
Pre HSCT-2	Country UNITED KINGDOM
Transplant-2	
Day 100-2	Additional centre
Followup-2	
Diagnosis-3	Centre Identification Code (CIC)
1st line-3	Team number Use the same Team number as in
Pre HSCT-3	the EBMT membership list
Transplant-3	
Day 100-3	Date of this report
Followup-3	(yyyyimmidd)
Diagnosis-4	
1st line-4	Hospital (optional)
Pre HSCT-4	Unit name (optional)
Transplant-4	
Day 100-4	
Followup-4	Unit category
Diagnosis-5	Contact person
1st line-5	
Pre HSCT-5	Hospital identification of patient
Transplant-5	Hospital Unique Patient Code or number given by this hospital
Day 100-5	Number (UPN) or code to this patient. It must be unique and sufficient Do NOT leave this item empty by itself to identify the patient within the
Followup-5	Prospital Prospital
Diagnosis-6	Additional patient identification
1st line-6	for this team (optional)
Pre HSCT-6	

The **Schedule QuickView** is a summary of the patient's medical history in a tree form. Please read the next chapter below, which briefly explains its use.

After you fill in the Centre form above, and the following one, named Subject Personal Details, the patient is given a Subject Label by the system:

Unique Identification Code given by MACRO (UIC)	1000155 🥪	
PATIENT Regis Registe Registering c		This subject has been successfully registered as 1000155
Patient sex	O Male Female	

and then you can continue with the registration of the current form, named Subject Information.

PLEASE NOTE: if you fail to fill in the Subject Personal Details Form in full, your subject will not be registered in the database and you will get the following message:

is te	This subject cannot be registered because the registration conditions have not been met.
	-

THE **EBMT WORKING PARTIES** WILL HAVE **NO ACCESS** TO THE FORM **"SUBJECT PERSONAL DETAILS**", WHICH WILL BE VISIBLE *ONLY* BY THE CENTRES/SITES THAT ARE *INVOLVED* WITH THIS PATIENT (either treating or following up, as they will already have this information in their records).

When you are done registering the 3rd and last Form of the Registration Block, you are asked if you want to continue to the Next Visit:

Registration Date	2018/10/12 💌	
Registering centre	201	
Registering centre UPN	If you need to make a correction to the UPN, return 87646463 to the Centre eForm to do the correction	
Patient sex	O Male	
	This is the end of the visit. Would you like to move to the next Visit?	
	Yes No	

This Question is asked every time a Visit ends (at the end of the last question of its last Form) and a new one begins. In this case, after you finish with the last Visit of the 1^{st} Block, you are taken to the 1^{st} Visit of the 2^{nd} Block.

PLEASE NOTE: the 1st Block has only one Visit: the Registration visit, consisted of 3 forms (= Centre, Subject Personal Details & Subject Information), unless you answer Yes to the Study question, which will then create a Study form as well. You can find more details in the "Entering Data" Chapter.

If you click Yes, you are taken to the 1st Form of the Diagnosis-1 Visit, but you can click No and work on a different patient. If you go back to that patient's **Subject Visit Schedule**, you can now see the completed forms marked with a Green Tick, and the following Active form is now coloured in the Diagnosis Visit:



You can also right-click on an Active Form to see the available options.

When inside a Form, if you click on the Close Current Form button 😫 🗟 🗶 🏠 💿, MACRO will take you back to the patient's **Subject Visit Schedule**.

READ MORE about this in the Chapter "Entering Data" below.

How to use the Schedule QuickView

Once you access any subject and double-click on any of its forms in the Visit Schedule to view/edit/record data, the Form opens along with the Schedule QuickView in the panel on the left side:

Schedule QuickView ×	File View Tools Help	Database :EBMT_Test Role :DataE	ntry User : Asterios Kasmiris
	& ⇔ = = + + = = ×	🏠 🖪 🚳 🔍 🖪 🗃 🖝 🐖 🗲 🕨	
iar ✓ Registration 2018/06/12 (999 5219842)			
	Visit: Registr	ation eForm:	Centre
V Subject personal details			•
V Subject Information	Visit Date 2018/0	6/12 eform Date:	
🖸 Navigation	Laboratory: None s	elected	
Diagnosis-1 2015/03/17 (Mantle,BL,DLBCL/BL))
Ist line-1 2015/04/03 (Chemo)	Centre with access to the	nis nationt's data	
E Cell Therapy	Centre with access to a	no patient o data	
Image: Image	Registration centre		
Transplant-1 2017/05/17 (Allograft)	Registration Centre		
Day 100-1 2017/08/27 (Alive)	-	999	
Followup-1	Team number	Use the same Team number as in the EBMT membership list	
Diagnosis-2	Country		
e 1st line-2	County	PITCAIRN	_
+ Pre HSCT-2			
+ Transplant-2	Additional centre		
±- Day 100-2		If you are not the Registration centre,	
+ Followup-2	Centre Identification Code (CIC)	fill in the CIC information for your centre	
±- Diagnosis-3	Team number	Use the same Team number as in	
±- 1st line-3		the EBMT membership list	
ere HSCT-3			
ar- Transplant-3	Date of this report	2018/06/12 -	
a Day 100-3	(yyyy/mm/dd)	V	
e Followup-3			
a Diagnosis-4	Hospital (optional)	SOUTHAMPTON	
a 1st line-4	Unit name (optional)		
Pre HSCT-4			
··· Transplant-4			
+i- Day 100-4	Unit category	BMT unit 👻 🖌	

You can close the Schedule QuickView by clicking on the X on the top right corner of the panel:



To re-open the panel click the Schedule QuickView icon:

<u>F</u> ile	View	Tools	<u>H</u> elp					Data	ibase	:EBMT_
2	۵ ۵	ي 🛃		R	Č	 P			Þ	R

You can click on the + on the left of any Visit to unfold its available Forms, and by *single* clicking on any Form, you can load it. Below you can see that if a Form is marked as Missing, then the Visit it is a part of, is also marked with the same Status Icon. This indicates that there is *at least one* form in this visit with this property:



Equally, a whole Subject is marked accordingly, if at least one visit is marked with any Status.

You can check the meaning of all Status Icons at any time by clicking on the icon **Symbols and Function Keys** to get the Icon Legend (which shows the Symbols' description):

Schedule QuickView	X Ele View Iosis Help	Database EEMT_Training Role DataEntry User Asterios Kasminis	Symbols and Function Keys	×
G ✓ Med8_PrePred3/c0282/1000798	8		- Status-	~
Registration 2016/02/15 (282 12333)	0 4 0 0 4 4 0 0 4 12 6 6		X invalid	
Diagnosis-1 2011/05/82 (AML Med-A)	Visit	sin-1 ef orm	Not Applicable	
Gentre-MedAB Selection (282 - Med-A)	THE MERICA	eren.	Cytogenetics	
- w Primary Diagnosis (1 to 6) 2011/05/02 (AML)	Visit Date 20110	592 eform Date:	Missing	
- Cytogenetics (Abnormal)	Laboratory None s	riected	Not Available	
- Molecular Markers (Normal)	Concernante Concernante Concernante		A Warring	
- w involvement			Inform Note	
- 1st line-1	Chromosome Analysis		Comment .	
Non HSCT				
si w Pre HSCT-1			- Lock Freeze	
S V Transplant-1 2011/09/09 (Allograft)		agnosis date	From	
Day 100-1	print, a resulted Precursor Neoplasms 2	11002034	Looked	
Followup-1	Chromosome analysis at this visit		- PC8	
a) Diagnosis-2	(All methods including FISH)	zeomai 👻 🖌	► Raised	
- 1st line-2	Technique used	8 0	► Responded	
s Pre HSCT-2	Number of melaphases examined	0	► Closed	
- Transplant-2				
s) Day 100-2	Number of metaphases with abnormalities		SD/	
Followup-2	Complex karyotype O no Mo	Insomal karyotype 🔹 No	Gueried	
a) Diagnosis-3	and the second sec	dosomal monosomy	Done	
- 1st ine-3		least 1 structural abnormality)		
Pre HSCT-3	Transcribe the complete karyotype?		Changes to Data	
- Transplant-3		No 💞 Ves	a One	
n - Day 100-3	The second se		III Two III Three+	
n- Followup-)	Karjotype:	0	1	
Diagnosis-4			- Normal Bange	
tat line-4	Indicate below those abnormalities that have been evaluated	and whether they uses Absent or Present	9 High	
- Pre HSCT-4	Row Abnormality Absent or		FISH analys Normal	
S- Transplant-4	Provi Automotity Automotity	chomosomes (chomosome affected,	ton analys 4 Low	
s) Day 100-4	1 #(15;17) Absent		P O Firster Ken	
a) Followup-4			Function Kays F1 Help	
 Diagnosis-5 	(3.94.0		F3 Save and Previous	
1st ine-5	3 Inv(16)1(16;16) Present		F4 Save and Next eForm	
Pre HSCT-S	4 also 11q23 Not evalu	ated 🗕 🤟	F6 Save and Close F7 Save current eForm	
n- Transplant-5	5 x(9:11)		F8 Close	
n Day 100-5	8 4(19)(10)		The second secon	
- Folowap-5			Fill Netro	
Diagnosis-6	7 8(10;11)		F12 Remove Comments	
g Dagnasi-6	8 s(6;11)			
THE WITCH	* 9 Other aim 11x23		E a T	

They will appear in the right side panel, along with a list of available **Shortcuts**. You can close this panel by clicking on the X button on the top right of the panel.

PLEASE NOTE (<u>Question status priority</u>): When a subject/visit/Form contains questions with differing statuses, the following hierarchy applies:

- 1. Warning
- 2. OK Warning
- 3. Missing
- 4. OK
- 5. Not Available

For example, if a Form contains questions with the statuses 'Warning' and 'Missing', it will always be represented by the 'Warning' icon as this has the highest priority.

PLEASE NOTE: some Forms in a Visit may not be Active, as they are not relevant to the Disease, the HSCT Type, etc. so you can see them being greyed out:



Entering Data

Types of **Questions (Comments** and **Notes)**

There are several different types of question in MACRO. A question type determines how it is displayed on a Form and how it is to be answered.

Туре	Identified by
Text	A text box requiring a textual answer, occasionally with an expand arrow to the right. Thesaurus questions are clinically significant text questions that can be coded against a medical dictionary. They are displayed as a text box with an orange border
Category	A set of option buttons (radio buttons), check boxes or a drop down list.
Number	A small text box requiring a numerical answer.
Date/time	A small text box requiring a date as an answer, occasionally with a drop down arrow to the right.
Multimedia	A paperclip icon or a magnifying glass icon if the question has already been answered.

EXAMPLES:

Text:

Additional patient identification for this team	text box example (optional)	
Disease diagnosis	Lymphoma	
Date of diagnosis	1 Acute leukaemia 2 Chronic leukaemia 3 Lymphoma	l date is

Drop-down Category question:

SHORTCUT: once you tab to a drop-down list category question, the options unfold automatically. You can use "ALT+Down Arrow" or "ALT+Up Arrow" to unfold it and fold it respectively.

Indicate the type of main treatment to be entered	HSCT only HSCT with additional cell therapy Cell therapy only	~

Radio Button Category question:

When you tab to a radio button category question, you can move down and up using the arrow keys on your keyboard to go through the options (you can also use the left and right arrow keys) and press <u>SPACEBAR</u> to select your choice. When you tab to any question, it is activated by turning Yellow (= how the cursor moves throughout the Data Entry). To remove an entry from a Radio Button category question, right-click on it and select the option **Clear**:

Indicate the type of ma treatment to be entere					1		
	-	2	View Question Information.				
		Ð	View Audit Trail				
			View Warning				
		0	View Inform Message				
Date	ofCT	-	Comments	۱.	le of 1st Transplant	T	
			Notes	►			
			DCRs	Þ			
			SDV Mark	Þ			
			Change Status	Þ			
		6	Clear				
					-		

SHORTCUT: alternatively, you can press F9 when the cursor is on the question (Yellow).

	Number of complete remissions (achieved before this HSCT	(CR, CRu)	2 🖌
Number:	Number of partial remissions (PR achieved before this HSCT	0 🖌	
	Disease diagnosis Lymphoma		
	Date of diagnosis 2015/03/17	Partial date is allowed ««Oct »» ««2018 »»	
	Non malignancies	SMTWTES	
	The rest of the eform will be skipped	0	
	Additional information on non-malig requested in the next eform		
		14 15 16 17 18 19 20	
		21 22 23 24 25 26 27	
	on 1 1 1 1	28 29 30 31	
	Other diagnosis - please specify		
		Cancel	
/			

Date/Time:

SHORTCUT: instead of typing the date, you can click on the drop-down option next to the date field, which unfolds a **Calendar**, where you can select the date from.

SHORTCUT 2: when inside a date question, the shortcut for today's date is letter "t".

Picture of subject (if available)

Multimedia:

If the Multimedia Question is answered, the Paperclip is then changed to a Magnifying Glass, which indicates that you are able to view its content:

O

PLEASE NOTE: there are some Questions with a *combination* of the above options of category questions, such as some Haematological Values, where you have the option to select either a radio button for Not Evaluated or a Numerical value field to enter the value. Also, you can have a radio button for Not Evaluated or a drop-down list category question with options to choose from or, such as the HLA.

Haemoglobin (g Erythrocyte sed		Not evaluated	9.4
Locus A	Not evaluated	DNA A*01:01:10 A*01:01:15	- y

In terms of Data Entry, in cases such as the 2 examples above, you first tab to the NE Radio button and if you select it, it skips the following item (free text box or drop down list category question), but if you skip it, then it jumps to the following item (free text box or drop down list category question) for you to answer. Just a gentle reminder: if you want to **Clear** a selected Radio button category question, you press F9 or you right-click and you select the option Clear from the drop-down menu.

PLEASE NOTE: depending on the language you have set in your internet browser, the **Decimal and Thousands Separator** might be presented differently – it can be either Decimal Comma (,) or Decimal Point (.) and the opposite for the Thousands Separator. For example, in countries like the Czech Republic, Italy or Spain *ten thousands* would be written like this: 10.000,00 and in countries like the UK and the US like this: 10,000.00

In order to avoid possible mistakes, you must remember that it is your <u>Internet Browser's language</u> that defines what format you will be viewing your data in MACRO, and you should therefore choose the corresponding symbol (comma or point) when entering numerical values.

PLEASE NOTE: you can add **Comments** and/or **Notes** on any question. The Comments are clinically significant comments on a question. The Notes are more like a personal reminder, but they are visible both by data entry users and by data reviewers, so it is a way of communication between the two. The notes can also be downloaded. If any question has either a comment or a note, they are marked respectively as such:

Splenectomy		
Patient had splenectomy	Number of RBC transfusio	ons <20 units 🗸 🏹
	Age at 1st transfusion	Net evaluated months
Date of splenectomy		Not evaluated
Date of spielectomy		

You can add either of the two by right-clicking on any question to get the drop-down options:



If at least 1 Comment exists already, the option view will be active (not greyed out as above). The same happens with Notes as shown below:



If you click on View a pop-up window appears to show the existing information. The **Notes** appear in rows on which you can right-click and select Edit Note:

Note Browser	d drop it	here to group by that column						_
Date	Status	Subject	Visit	eForm	Question	Value	User Name	Т
> 2019/02/15 13:25:19	Public	MedB_PreProd3/c020117000004 Edit N		Treatment up to this date	Number of RBC transfusions	<20 units	Asterios Kasmiris	A

which will open the Note like this:

		here to group by that column					
Date	Status	Subject	Visit	eForm	Question	Value	User Name
2019/02/15 1	13:25:19 Public	MedB_PreProd3/c0201/1000004	Transplant-1	Treatment up to this date	Number of RBC transfusions	<20 units	Asterios Kasmiris
Page 1 of	f 1, records 1 to 1	of 1 records. 📢 🔶 🕨					
					ж		
Edit Note —— Name	Number of RE	3C transfusions					
Edit Note —— Name Text		BC transfusions	centre.				
Name			centre.		ОК		
Name			centre.		OK Cancel		

The **Comments** appear in the following window, but it is just 1 of the 3 available tabs:

Question Inf	formation
Name Value	Patient had spienectomy? No
Properties The following	Comments Audit Trail
	tially planned, but the patient left the country.
	Remove All Comments

The other 2 tabs – Properties and Audit Trail – can also appear by selecting their corresponding options on the drop down list of any question:

2	View Question Information	adiated	- 0
•	View Audit Trail		
	View Warning		
0	View Inform Message		-
	Comments	•	
	Notes	•	Add
	DCRs	•	View
	SDV Mark	- • T	
	Change Status	+	
8	Clear		

named: View Question Information and View Audit Trail.

Regarding any of the concepts described above, please refer to MACRO help.

Help provided (Contextual texts, Help Files, Multimedia, Hyperlinks)

For the easiness of the Data Entry process, MACRO offers the capacity of some explanatory notes (Contextual Text) appearing on the Forms in blue colour, found next to the Questions they refer to:

egistration centre		
Registration Centre	516	
Team number		the same Team number as in EBMT membership list
Country	SPAIN	
dditional centre		
Centre Identification Code (CIC)		If you are not the Registration centre, fill in the CIC information for your centre
Team number	_	Use the same Team number as in

Please make sure to read these, as they are designed to facilitate your work.

What is more, MACRO offers the possibility of attaching documents, known as Multimedia files, which are indicated with a paperclip icon (or a magnifying glass if the question is answered):



Moreover, you can find Hyperlinks, for moving to another form *within* MACRO, such as the one below:



Finally, additional help can always be found on the EBMT Website under the Registry tab:

https://www.ebmt.org/registry/how-use-registry

https://www.ebmt.org/registry/data-collection

https://www.ebmt.org/ebmt/documents/med-ab-forms-manual

https://www.ebmt.org/registry/data-submission

You can also contact the **Registry Helpdesk** at all times $\rightarrow \underline{\text{registryhelpdesk@ebmt.org}}$ We aim to get back to you within 24 hours upon receipt of your query.

Data Entry

Cursor: the cursor indicates which question you are answering at any given moment during data entry. It is highlighted in Yellow, if it is a free text box:

Centre with access to	this patient's data			
Registration centre				
Registration Centre	201			
Team number	t Use the same Team number as in the EBMT membership list	Date of thi		2018/10/24 👻 🧹
Country	UNITED KINGDOM	(yyyy/mm/	dd)	
Additional centre		Hospital	(optional)	
Centre Identification Code (CIC)	If you are not the Registration centre, fill in the CIC information for your centre	Unit name	(optional)	
		Onichame	(opuoriai)	
Team number	Use the same Team number as in the EBMT membership list			

if it is a Radio button category question, the whole area of options is highlighted instead:



and if it is a Drop-down list category question, the options expand automatically and all of them are highlighted:

Unit category	Oncology	-	V	
Contact person				
	1 Haematology			
	2 Oncology			
Heapital identification of patient	3 Adults			
lospital identification of patient	4 Paediatrics			
Hospital Unique Patient	5 Allograft			
Number (UPN) or code	6 Autograft			
	7 BMT unit		y	
	8 Paediatric haematology			
	9 Paediatric oncology			
Additional patient identification	10 Dept. Medicine			
for this team	11 Haematoncology			
	(optional)			

PLEASE NOTE: the Blue highlighting happens when you go back to a question that has already been answered.

You can do the entire Data Entry using solely the **keyboard**, which is *recommended*, as it ensures you answer all the questions in the order specified by the study designer. The TAB key is the key that moves the cursor from one question to the following one.

- If the question is a free-text box, you can click TAB after you are done typing your entry.

- If it is a drop-down list category question, you can use the Down and Up arrows to move to the preferred of the available options and then TAB to accept it. The option you are about to choose is highlighted in Blue:

Disease diagnosis	Solid tumours	•	
Date of diagnosis	1 Acute leukaemia	,	date is allowed
	2 Chronic leukaemia 3 Lymphoma		
Non malignancies	4 Plasma cell disorders		
The rest of the eform		_	
Additional information	7 Bone marrow failure		
requested in the next	o innented disorders		
	0 Histioautia disordore		

You can fold and unfold the options of a drop-down list

category question by using the ALT+Up and ALT+Down shortcut respectively.

PLEASE NOTE: in Drop-down lists category questions, such as the one above, you can alternatively type the **Code** that appears next to the label and press TAB or ENTER.

- If it is a Radio button category question, again you use the Down and Up arrows (or the Left and Right arrow keys) to move to the preferred of the available options and then click <u>SPACEBAR</u> to accept it. A grey square is indicating which option you are about to select:

HSCT only HSCT with additional cel Cell therapy only

In all of the 3 options above, if you click TAB, the cursor will jump to the next question without any answer selected ("tabbing out" of a question). But if a selection is made, the cursor automatically jumps to the following question.

PLEASE NOTE: MACRO does *not accept* the following characters when entering data "`~|

For more information on this, please refer to MACRO Help, under "Navigating through an eForm".

Mouse: Using the mouse is **not** recommended during normal registration as it may lead to essential data items being skipped or validations being triggered in the wrong order. However, the mouse may be useful when filling missing items *ad hoc* or making point corrections. You can choose one of the options by <u>left</u> clicking on the preferred answer (either in a Radio button or an option in a Drop-down list of a category question) and once the selection is made, the cursor moves automatically to the following question. If you are typing in a free text box, you can click anywhere outside of the box and your value/text will be accepted.

Saving data and moving between Forms

Data is not saved until you click a Save button or move to another Form. You will always be warned if you attempt to save a Form containing unanswered mandatory questions or if you attempt to leave a Form containing unsaved data. You can also choose to see a warning message if you attempt to save a Form without having made any changes to it. Set this via Tools > Options > eForm.

At the end of each Form and after you have answered its last question, the cursor will jump to the option Save and Move to the Next Form, which you can select by clicking <u>SPACEBAR</u>:

Do you wish to enter data for Med-A or Med-B? Med-A
 Med-B



Alternatively, you can use the arrow keys to select another of the 3 options there (Move to next Form in schedule without saving, Move to previous Form in schedule without saving & Save and move to previous Form in schedule).

lcon	Keyboard shortcut	Action	Description
	F7	Save current screen	Use this to save data at any time whilst keeping the Form open. Any question derivations and validations will be updated. This icon appears in the tool bar at the top of the screen.
8	F3	Save and move to previous Form in schedule	Use this to save and close the current Form and open the previous Form in the schedule. The icon appears at the bottom right of the Form and in the tool bar at the top of the screen.
4		Move to previous Form in schedule without saving	Use this to close the current Form without saving it and to open the previous Form in the schedule. The icon appears at the bottom right of the Form and in the tool bar at the top of the screen.
4		Move to next Form in schedule without saving	Use this to save and close the current Form and to open the next available Form in the schedule. The icon appears at the bottom right of the Form and in the tool bar at the top of the screen.
2	F4	Save and move to next Form in schedule	Use this to close the current Form without saving it and open the next available Form in the schedule. The icon appears at the bottom right of the Form and in the tool bar at the top of the screen.
	F6	Save and close current Form	Use this to save and close the current subject. Note that this will close all Forms and the schedule for this subject. This icon appears in the tool bar at the top of the screen.
×	F8	Close current Form	Use this to close the current subject tab without saving. Note that this will close all Forms and the schedule for this subject. If you have any unsaved data on the Form, you will be asked if you wish to save it before closing.

SHORTCUT: click the F4 key for the option "Save and move to next Form in schedule".

PLEASE NOTE: if you click on the button "Move to next Form in schedule without saving", but there are changes made in the form that have to be saved, you get the reminder message below:

The eForm has some Unsaved changes. Do you wish to save before closing?
Yes No Cancel

The above options will also appear in the Toolbar, once you have loaded any Form:



PLEASE NOTE: every time you SAVE a Form in MACRO the patient record reloads itself and certain Forms that are applicable (depending on the Disease or some answers that you have provided) will then appear after the patient is reloaded.

Shortcuts

You can get the list of available Shortcuts in MACRO by clicking on the icon Symbols and Function

	<u>F</u> ile	View	To	ols	<u>H</u> elp							Data	abase	EBMT	Ľ
Keys:	<mark>&</mark> (∍ 🏠		*		A	C	===	۲	P	;;;	Þ	Þ	R	– and the Icon Legen



- Function	Kevs
F1	Help
F3	Save and Previous eForm
F4	Save and Next eForm
F6	Save and Close
F7	Save current eForm
F8	Close
F9	Clear Question Value
F10	Show Question Context Menu
F11	Add Comment
F12	Remove Comments

In addition, you can use the usual shortcuts CTRL+C, CTRL+V, CTRL+A and CTRL+Z that are used in Windows for Copy, Paste, Select All and Undo respectively, but NOT the CTRL+S for Save. The shortcut for Save is the F7 key.

and the Icon Legend appears in

PLEASE NOTE: CTRL+Z is <u>only applicable</u> inside a free-text box to Undo what you typed, but it will not work if you try to deselect a Radio button or a Drop-down list selection you have just made in a category question.

Navigation (answering Questions inside the Forms)

As mentioned before, there could be some Forms that are Active and some that are not. This depends on some questions, typically asked at the beginning of a Registration, and they depend both on the type of Diagnosis you choose and some of the answers you have already provided. For example, at some point you are asked if you are recording a MedA or a MedB form:



and depending on your answer, some Questions or Forms will

become active or not. Equally, when selecting the HSCT Type:



if you select an Allogeneic, the Donor's relevant Forms and HLA

Forms will get activated, which will not be the case if you select Autologous. Another example would be Cytogenetics or Molecular Markers. So, if you select to register an AML, you will be asked the corresponding *screening* questions:



to which if you answer Yes the Cytogenetics Form will be activated;

if you answer No, it will not. Another example is a *screening* question about Involvement Assessed or about Pre-HSCT Treatment, which are also disease dependent:

Type of investigations perform	ed at dia	nosis				
Chromosome / genetic analysis done?	NoYes	v	Molecular analysis done?	O No Yes	Involvement assessed	No Yes
First line treatment given for th	is diagno	sis				
Non cell-based treatment given prior to this main treatment		No Yes	۲			

PLEASE NOTE: in the above screenshot the Questions "Involvement Assessed" and "Non cell-based treatment given prior to this transplant" are Not Active (marked with a greyed circle and with the answers greyed out as well), as they are not a requirement of the pre-selected disease (depending on the corresponding Working Party's decision). They will be active in certain diseases where they are considered a requirement.

Another *screening* question that you will have to answer has to do with whether the patient has participated in a Clinical Study or not:

Has the patient been enrolled in a prospective trial or study	🖸 No
at your centre?	O Yes

Or with the type of treatment you are reporting:

Indicate the type of main treatment to be entered	HSCT only HSCT with additional cell therapy Cell therapy only
	Immuno Suppression (IS) only

PLEASE NOTE: the "Immuno Suppression (IS) Only" option above is applicable only for Bone Marrow Failures.

The Forms will not appear at first, but they will appear once you **SAVE** the Form. Every time you SAVE a Form in MACRO the patient record reloads itself, which makes any new Forms appear, depending on your answer to this type of Questions.

There is another section in this Chapter called **Navigation (how to continue or finish a registration)**, but it has to do with how you continue to or how you finish a Day 0, a Day 100 or a Follow Up registration.

Repeating Question Groups (RQGs)

In certain occasions in MACRO there are some types of Questions that are *repeating* and appear in the form of tables. Such examples are the cytogenetics, the molecular markers or the drugs:

Preparative Regimen					
Drug (prescribed to be given before Day 0)	Dose of drug	Units of measurement		Radioactivity dose	
BCNU / Carmustine	300.0	mg/msq 👻	\checkmark		milli Curie (mCi)
					Mega Becquerel (MBq)
Drug (prescribed to be given before Day 0)	Dose of drug	Units of measurement		Radioactivity dose	
ARA-C / Cytarabine	1600.0	mg/msq 👻	\checkmark		milli Curie (mCi)
					Mega Becquerel (MBq)
Drug (prescribed to be given before Day 0)	Dose of drug	Units of measurement		Radioactivity dose	
Etoposide / VP16	800.0	mg/msq 👻	\checkmark		milli Curie (mCi)
					Mega Becquerel (MBq)
Drug (prescribed to be given before Day 0)	Dose of drug	Units of measurement		Radioactivity dose	
Melphalan 🗸	140.0	mg/msq 👻	\checkmark		milli Curie (mCi)
					Mega Becquerel (MBq)
Drug (prescribed to be given before Day 0)	Dose of drug	Units of measurement		Radioactivity dose	
		-			milli Curie (mCi)
					Mega Becquerel (MBq)
4					

Once you answer the corresponding Question that activates the above Repeating Question Group, you are first taken to select the Drug name from the drugs' list. There will only be one row showing inside the table:

PLEASE NOTE: at this point, and at the moment you select your first drug and accept the value, MACRO will automatically SAVE, Reload the form, and generate the second row, where the following drug can be added. This behaviour is the same throughout all RQGs.

Once you select the first drug, you are taken to the next question (dose), and once you answer that, to the Unit of Measurement. After that you are automatically taken to select the next drug.

PLEASE NOTE: at this point MACRO will SAVE and Reload the form, so that the following row is created.

If you do not have more drugs to report, you simply leave this question blank by tabbing out of it, which should take you to the following question, outside the table. Otherwise you continue entering drugs until you report them all.

Therefore, note that there will <u>always be a row left blank</u> at each and every one of tables of any RQG found in MACRO.

PLEASE NOTE: in some case you may find some pre-defined options selected for you (either because it is the corresponding Working Party's requirement or because they are commonly used). You cannot add more data underneath the pre-defined ones:

Row	Abnormality	Absent or Preser	nt		Number of chomosomes	Additional details (chromosome affected, etc)	,	-ISH analysis
1	del(13)(q14)	Present	-	\checkmark				-
2	t(11;14)	Absent	-	\checkmark				-
3	abn 17q	Absent	•	\checkmark				-
4	del(17p) / 17p-	Present		\checkmark				-
5	t(4;14)	Absent	-	\checkmark				-
6	t(14;16)	Absent	-	\checkmark				-
7	1q amplification	Present	-	\checkmark				-
8	myc rearrangement	Not evaluated	-	\checkmark				-
9								
10								
11			T					-
12			-					-
13			-					-
14			-					*

Instead, there will be another table (RQG) that follows, where you can add any other choices that are not included in the pre-defined ones:

	cytogenetic abnormalities been sed that are not listed above		 No Yes 		
Indicate below those cytogenetic abnormalities that have been evaluated and whether they were Absent or Present. If you have already filled the table above, indicate those cytogenetic abnormalities analysed that were not listed above Abnormality Absent or Present Abnormality description					
1.		-	Ţ		

Validation (Warning and Rejection messages)

Validation rules can be attached to individual questions by the study designer in the form of conditions. If you enter a value that satisfies the condition, a validation message may be displayed. You might see two types of validation; Rejection and Warning.

1. Rejection

An explanation of the rejection is present within the popup and should help you to re-enter the correct data. Your only option is to click OK and enter a different value. Your original entry will automatically be removed.

2. Warnings

An explanation of the warning is present within the popup and should help you to either re-enter the correct data or overrule this warning.

You have 3 options:

- I. If you have entered an incorrect value, click **CLOSE** and enter a different value.
- II. If you wish to ignore the warning, click **CLOSE** and leave your original entry in place. The Warning status will be assigned to the question. (see Examples below)
- III. If there is a valid reason for entering the value, enter your reason in the **Overrule** text box (using up to 255 characters) or select a predefined reason from the drop down list and click OK. This will leave your original entry in place and assign the OK Warning status to the question.

PLEASE NOTE: if multiple validations have fired for a question, you will see them all listed but you will only be able to respond to the one at the top of the list.

To overrule a warning, you need both the 'Change data' and 'Overrule warnings' permissions



Possible indications for a Question's **Status**:

In addition to the above, you may see the symbol below, which indicates the number of changes that each Question had:



(e.g.: 2 for ABO Group and 3 for Rh factor)

Viewing the validation rules for a question

You can view any validation rules that have been attached to a question:

- a) On an eForm, right click the question field or status icon (or press **F10**) and select **View Question Information**. The Question Information window is displayed.
- b) Within the Properties tab, click in the Validations row then click the **Collection** button.
c) The validation rules associated with the question are listed.

Collect-if Condition	
Derivation	
Length	3
Name	heart rate
Туре	Integer
Unit	bpm
Validations	(Collection)
Response	
Change Count	0

For each rule, you will see the type of validation, the condition itself and the message that will be displayed if the condition is not met.

If the question has the status of Warning, OK Warning or Inform, you will be able to right click it and select **View Warning** or **View Inform Message** from the popup menu to view the validation message attached to the condition that has been met. Before the eForm is saved, it is possible to view all the fired validations but after the eForm has been saved, only the first validation will be shown.

Validation takes place automatically every time an eForm is opened by a user with the Change Data permission and every time that it is saved.

EXAMPLES:

1. Rejection messages

Registering centre UPN	235	Reject Data	
		Name Date of birth Value 2019/04/10	
First name initials (maximum of two)		2019/04/10	
Surname initials (maximum of two)	Α 🖌	The entered data has been rejected for the following reas	ion:
Date of birth	2019/04/10	Date of birth cannot be in the future	
Sex	Male		
(at birth)	Female		ок
Exclude from Registry	Use onl the con if applic registry		

	Type of multiple graft program		•
	Graft number in protocol	1 Double allo	
	I number of grafts in the protocol	2 Auto-Miniallo 3 Auto-Allo	
In the question of Multiple Graft Protocol where the options are 4:		4 Double auto 77 Other	



if you type 5 you get a **Rejection** message:

Another example would be if the HSCT Date is before the Diagnosis Date, your value will be rejected:



2. Warning messages

v

A value can exceed the maximum, like the patient's Weight above, or it can be less than the minimum requirement, like the Haemoglobin below:

🗐 Que	estion Informat	ion	
Name		Haemoglobin	
Value		1	
	ollowing warni	ngs have been generated:	
	Message		Overrule
	This value is to	oo low	v

In a scenario where you have not filled in the Subject Personal Details Form in full, the registration will not be completed and you will get the following Warning message:

0	This subject cannot be registered because the registration conditions have not been met.
te c	ок

If a Form contains some Mandatory questions, which you left unanswered, you get this message:

Some mandatory questions are blank. Are you sure you want to leave this eForm?	
this transplant VNO 🙈	

PLEASE NOTE: the above message appears before the Form is saved, therefore you click No and the Missing items will then be marked with the Missing Status symbol, so that you know which ones they are and you can then go and fill them in, before you leave the Form.

If you choose to ignore the warning and answer Yes to the question, the following Form or Visit will <u>fail to activate</u>. Therefore, MACRO will not be able to continue and you will be presented with the following message:

HSC	This is the last available eForm in the study.	
AUTC	ОК	
Source of stem cells (check all that a	pply)	

Navigation (how to continue or finish a registration)

The requirements for a registration may change depending on the type of treatment you are reporting. For an **HSCT** you are required to report a Day 0, a Day 100 and an Annual Follow Up report, but for a **Cell Therapy**, besides the 3 above, you are additionally required to report a 6 Month report as well. Each time you are finishing a registration for any of the above, you will be asked by MACRO how you want to proceed. This happens at the last Form of the last Visit of each registration:

Annual assessment		
hat do you want to do next?		
Finish data entry for this patient		
Enter an annual follow up		
Enter a subsequent transplant		~
Enter a new diagnosis indication for a si	ubsequent transplant	
Enter an annual follow up with a shorter	interval due to death, lost to follow up	, changed centres
nstructions will appear here after you hav	ve made a selection above	
Use F6 or click on icon 'Save	and close current eForr	n'

You can see in the above Form that you are presented with certain options:

- Finish data entry for this patient
- Enter an annual follow up
- Enter a subsequent transplant
- Enter a new diagnosis indication for a subsequent transplant
- Enter an annual follow up with a shorter interval due to death, lost to follow up, changed centres

PLEASE NOTE: the options that will be offered will depend on the type of the Visit you are at. For example, at the end of a Day 0 registration you are presented with the following options:

00 day A	ssessment			
/hat do you	want to do next?			
Finish dat	a entry for this patient			
Enter the	day 100 assessment			~
Enter a da	ay 100 follow up with a short	er interval due to deat	n of the patient or lost to f	follow up
Instructions v	vill appear here after you h	ave made a selectior	above	
	r click on icon 'Sav xt follow up Visit	ve and move to	next eForm on s	schedule' to go

Accordingly, at the end of a Day 100 registration these 2 options will not appear, as they are not applicable:

- Enter the 100 day assessment
- Enter a 100 day follow up with a shorter interval due to death of the patient or lost to follow up

PLEASE NOTE: in the box above these options, you are advised as to what is likely to follow. And underneath these options you are advised as to what Save option you need to select. These instructions underneath change depending on the choice you made from one of these options. Please make sure you read and follow them.

Annual assessment	
What do you want to do next?	
Pinish data entry for this patient	
C Enter an annual follow up	
Enter a subsequent transplant	~
Enter a new diagnosis indication for a subsequent transplant	
Enter an annual follow up with a shorter interval due to death, lost to follow up, or enter an annual follow up with a shorter interval due to death, lost to follow up, or enter an annual follow up with a shorter interval due to death.	changed centres
Instructions will appear here after you have made a selection above	
Before entering the new transplant, make sure that th follow up, 2013/12/12, is not more than 3 months befo subsequent transplant. If it is not so, enter a new follo 'Enter an annual follow-up' above	re the date of the

Explanations:

- Finish data entry for this patient

This should be the <u>most common choice</u> to make at the end of any registration. The reason for this is that if you are reporting on time, you will not be able to choose any of the rest of the options, as they would all refer to the future (either 100 days later or a year later, depending on whether you wanted to report Day 0 or Day 100 respectively). However, if you are reporting retrospectively, you might want to continue with any registration that follows, which is why all these options are there.

What do you want to do next?	
Finish data entry for this patient	
Enter an annual follow up	
Enter a subsequent transplant	\sim
Enter a new diagnosis indication for a subsequent transplant	
Enter an annual follow up with a shorter interval due to death, lost to follow up, changed centres	
Instructions will appear here after you have made a selection above	
Use F6 or click on icon 'Save and close current eForm'	

- Enter an annual follow up

This option should appear only after the latest registration is a Day 100 or a previously reported Annual Follow Up. Logically, it should not appear when you have finished a Day 0, but instead you should have 2 Day 100 available options. The **time restriction** in reporting an annual follow up is from 2 months before to 2 months after the 1 year post transplant. You will not be allowed to record a Follow Up outside this 4-month timeframe.

This is also the way to report a patient who is **Lost to Follow Up**, if you have a new date to report this. Alternatively, you can amend an already existing follow up's Patient Status from Alive to Lost to Follow Up, found in the Form called Patient Status:

Schedule QuickView ×	<u>File View Tools H</u> elp Database :EBMT_Training
	8. ⇔ . 8. 4 → 8 × . 8. 5. 5. 0. 10 8. 8
👾 🖌 Registration 2019/02/19 (876 819470938598345)	
Diagnosis-1 2011/11/11 (NHL Med-A)	Visit Date 2013/12/12
in ✓ 1st line-1 2011/12/12 (Chemo)	Laboratory: None selected
Non HSCT	
📄 🌻 Pre HSCT-1 (Gene therapy)	
🖅 🤞 Transplant-1 2012/12/12 (Autograft)	Patient status
→ ✓ Day 100-1 2013/03/20 (Alive)	
V Centre-MedAB Selection (876 - Med-A)	Centre Identification Hospital Unique Patient Unique Identification Code (CIC) Number (UPN) Code (UIC)
* Follow up events 2013/12/12	876 819470938598345 1000303
···· Performance status	
Treatment up to this date	
···· Von cell based Treatment 2013/11/11	
Comorbidity and serology	
V Progression	Patient status at the end of this visit
🖌 Last disease status	Dead
→ ✓ Patient status (Alive)	Alive
+ Diagnosis-2	 Lost to follow up
+ 1st line-2	
Pre HSCT-2	In the absence of another diagnosis or transplant,
Transplant-2	the next follow up visit would be
	Annual assessment
Followup-2	

PLEASE NOTE: this <u>not</u> the option to select if you are reporting a <u>Death</u>, which is *outside* the 4 months timeframe mentioned above. For this case read below the **Shorter Interval** option.

What do you want to do next?	
Finish data entry for this patient	
Enter an annual follow up	
Enter a subsequent transplant	~
Enter a new diagnosis indication for a subsequent transplant	
Enter an annual follow up with a shorter interval due to death, lost to follow up	p, changed centres
Instructions will appear here after you have made a selection above	
Use F4 or click on icon 'Save and move to next eForr to the next follow up Visit	n on schedule' to go

- Enter a subsequent transplant

This option is offered for the case where a subsequent transplant is taking place before the passing of a 3 months' period. If the new transplant is over 3 months since the most recent Visit, then you are requested to add a Follow Up first, and then select this option to record the new treatment. As it is explained in the message below, when you select this option:

What do you want to do next?

- Finish data entry for this patient
- Enter an annual follow up
- Enter a subsequent transplant
- Enter a new diagnosis indication for a subsequent transplant
- Enter an annual follow up with a shorter interval due to death, lost to follow up, changed centres

Instructions will appear here after you have made a selection above

Before entering the new transplant, make sure that the date of this follow up, 2013/12/12, is not more than 3 months before the date of the subsequent transplant. If it is not so, enter a new follow up by choosing 'Enter an annual follow-up' above

- Enter a new diagnosis indication for a subsequent transplant

Same as the option "Enter a subsequent transplant", you will be requested to enter a follow up first, if there has been over 3 months, since the most recent Visit. Again, it is explained in the message below:

Vhat do you want to do next?	
Finish data entry for this patient	
Enter an annual follow up	
 Enter a subsequent transplant 	~
Enter a new diagnosis indication for a subsequent transplant	
Enter an annual follow up with a shorter interval due to death, lost to follow up	, changed centres
Instructions will appear here after you have made a selection above	
Before entering the new diagnosis, make sure that th	ne date of this

- Enter an annual follow up with a **shorter interval** due to death, lost to follow up, changed centres

This option is offered so that you are allowed to "skip" the time-restrictions mentioned in the 4 options above. If you choose to select it, you will be asked for the reason why the **Shorter Interval**, before you are able to continue. The key element in this option and the reason of its existence is only the time that has passed since the most recent Visit. Of course, a valid reason to select this option would be the **Death** of the patient. If you choose to select it, a new Follow Up Visit will be created, and the moment you give the new date (which would be less than 3 months), you will first get a Warning message with options for why you are Overruling this rule:

ame	Date last seen alive	
alue	2017/8/3	
Warnings		
	varnings have been generated:	
Message		Overrule
A This date Only use	is too early for the yearly follow up after the transplant. it if it is the date of death of the patient.	<u> </u>
		Value is definitely correct
		New data definition requirement
		l am just testing
		Navigation field only

And then you will have to provide a "Reason why the date of the follow up is too early for this period":

	Follow up period Date of the previous follow up visit 2017/07/01
v Last disease status v Patient status (Alive) Followup-1(3) Ventre-MedAB Selection (999 - Med-B) Follow up events Performance status	Date of the Yearly Follow up 2017/08/03 If patient died within this period, enter the date of death as the date of the follow up Age at this follow up 59.1 Interval from last HSCT 2.1 years
D Last disease status D Patient status Diagnosis-2 1st line-2 Des HSCT 2	Reason why the date of the follow up is too early for this period 1 Last time patient seen in this hospital 2 Patient clied 3 Graft failure requires an immediate transplant

- Enter the 100 day assessment

This option is offered only at the end of a Day 0 registration, as it is not applicable elsewhere. The **time restrictions** applied here are from 80 days post-HSCT to 150 days post-HSCT.

PLEASE NOTE: this is <u>not</u> the option to select if you are reporting a <u>Death</u>, which is *outside* the 70 days timeframe mentioned above. For this case read below the **Shorter Interval** option.

In the absence of another diagnosis or transplant, the next follow up visit would be	
100 day Assessment	
What do you want to do next?	
 Finish data entry for this patient Enter the day 100 assessment Enter a day 100 follow up with a shorter interval due to death of the patient or lost to follow up 	v

- Enter a 100 day follow up with a **shorter interval** due to death of the patient or lost to follow up

Same as for the annual follow up, this option is offered so that you are allowed to "skip" the timerestriction mentioned in the option above. If you choose to select it, equally you will be asked for the reason why the **Shorter Interval**, before you are able to continue. The reason of its existence is again only the time that has passed, since the most recent Visit. A valid reason to select this option would be the **Death** of the patient. If you choose to select it, a new Follow Up Visit will be created, and the moment you give the new date (which would be less than 80 days), you will first get a Warning message with options for why you are Overruling this rule, and then the "Reason why the date of the follow up is too early for this period".

Diagnosis Visit

Diagnosis Visit

The first Question from the first Form (**Centre**) you have to answer in the Diagnosis Visit is the type of form you are about to use: either MedA or MedB:



After you answer the above, you are taken to the Question below, which is the first one in the **Primary Diagnosis** Form:

Primary Disease Diagnosis	
Is the treatment yo	ou are about to enter for more than one diagnosis?
No Yes Select the disease(s) for which t	Age at diagnosis
Disease diagnosis	·
Date of diagnosis	Partial date is allowed

Usually the answer to this would be No, but there are rare cases of what is called **Simultaneous Diagnosis** and there is a special section about this in the Chapter called "Complex Cases (examples)".

The following Question is naturally the **Main Disease Classification**, where you select one of the available options below:

Select the disease(s) for which this	treatment was performed	
Disease diagnosis	.	
Date of diagnosis	1 Acute leukaemia 2 Chronic leukaemia 3 Lymphoma	l date is allowed
Non malignancies	4 Plasma cell disorders	
The rest of the eform Additional information requested in the next	5 Solid tumours 6 MDS & MPN 7 Bone marrow failure	
	8 Inherited disorders 9 Histiocytic disorders 10 Auto-immune diseases	
Other diagnosis - please specify	11 Hemoglobinopathies 12 Neurologic disorder	• •
	13 Heart (cardiovascular) disease 14 Infection 15 Muscoskeletal disorder	
	16 Ocular disease	
To be answered only for the firs	17 Pulmonary disease 88 Uncoded (other)	atment

PLEASE NOTE: the first 11 of the above options are applicable *only* to **HSCT**s, whereas if you are reporting a **Cell Therapy**, you can choose any of the 17.

The code 88 for "Uncoded (other)" is *extremely rare* that will be needed, as we make sure that we update our lists with all possible diagnoses, in accordance with the WHO Classifications. What is more, we have a help file on our website called "List of Disease Classifications":

https://www.ebmt.org/ebmt/documents/dismclfd-list-disease-classifications

found under The Registry/ Data Collection: <u>https://www.ebmt.org/registry/data-collection</u>

where you can see how <u>diagnoses and their sub-classifications</u> can be coded in MACRO. If you are uncertain about how to record a diagnosis, and before you select the option Uncoded, please contact our Registry Helpdesk at: <u>registryhelpdesk@ebmt.org</u>

PLEASE NOTE: for the Diagnosis' dates a "Partial date is allowed", as occasionally the exact date of when a disease was diagnosed is not easy to pinpoint:

Select the disease(s) for which thi	s treatment was performed	
Disease diagnosis	Acute leukaemia	· V
Date of diagnosis	2015/06 🔻 🧹	Partial date is allowed

For example, you can enter just the Year and the Month, or just the Year.

Depending on your choice of a Main Disease Classification, and after you also provide the Date of Diagnosis, MACRO will take you to the corresponding **Sub-Classification** Question. For example, if you select Acute Leukaemia, you will be asked to choose from the following options:

Acute Leukaemia		
AML classification	1 AML & Related Precursor Neoplasms 2 Precursor Lymphoid Neoplasms (old ALL) 3 Acute undifferentiated leukaemia 4 Mixed phenotype NOS	-
Was there a previous of MDS or MDS/MPN	4 Mixed prendype HOS 5 Mixed phenotype: T/myeloid 6 Mixed phenotype: T/myeloid 7 Natural killer (NK) cell lymphoblastic leukaemia 77 Other, specify	r Yes to this question, you will be asked another diagnosis vist for the &MPN.
Predisposing condition leukaemia diagnosis?	99 unknown Ves condition	posing

and then its corresponding sub-classification (or not), depending on your choice.

If you select Lymphoma, it will ask you for the Lymphoma Sub-Classification:



PLEASE NOTE: in some Main Disease Classifications there will be another Primary Diagnosis Form created (for codes 7 to 11), where you will record the corresponding Sub-Classification.

Some of the diseases will be recorded it the form called "Primary Diagnosis (1 to 6) and some will be recorded in the one called "Primary Diagnosis (codes > 6), as shown in the screenshot below. This is reflecting your choice of the Main Indication Diagnosis ("Disease Diagnosis" question) that you choose first.



ALSO NOTE that if you create the Form "Primary Diagnosis (codes >6)" in error and you do not want to use it, you cannot delete it and it will then appear as Missing. The way to amend this is found in the Chapter of this manual called: "Modifying Existing Data".

Chromosome Analysis – Molecular Markers – Involvement – Non cell-based treatment (note that the Non-Cell Based Treatment is recorded in the following Visit (**1**st **line**))

These Forms that are found in the Diagnosis Visit are activated by answering their corresponding Questions found at the end of the Form "Primary Diagnosis (1 to 6)":

Type of investigations perfor Chromosome analysis done?	med at dia O No Yes	gnosis V		Molecular analysis done?	NoYes	Involvement assessed	No Ves	۲
First line treatment given for	this diagn	osis						
Non cell-based treatment given prior to this transplant		 No Yes 	۲					

These Questions are activated or not depending on the diagnosis you have just selected, and will activate or not their corresponding forms in the Diagnosis Visit. This happens after the Form is saved and the patient record reloads itself.

Chromosome Analysis (Cytogenetics)

The first Question you have to answer if you have activated this Form is whether your result was Normal or Abnormal. You can also see in the screenshot below that some options in the RQG are pre-selected for you, but note that which options will be active depends the on disease you have selected, as each one has its own likelihoods.

	le QuickView	× Ee			ools <u>H</u> elp											ios Kasmiris				
	ted8_PreProd/c0876/1000165	â 🔒	9	. 8	4 🔶 😫	🖬 🖬 🗙 🛛	1	H 🔍 🛙	s (a			7	7	>	· 🔎					
- @-	Registration 2018/10/30 (876 47984ggfg)			_						-		-	-		1					
	Diagnosis-1 2010/10/10 (AML)																			
	- V Centre-MedAB Selection (876 - Med-B)		Diagn					Diagnosis												
	& Primary Diagnosis (1 to 6) 2010/10/10 (AML)				ed Precursor Neo	alasans		2010/10/1												
	- Cytogenetics		Point 1	a rurai	es Pression Neo	prasma		2010/101	0											
	D Molecular Markers		Chro	mosom	e analysis at this	feir				_										
	D Haematological Values		(All m	nethods	including FISH)					w.										
	D Involvement		Techr	nique u	sed			1 Normal			0									
- @-	1st line-1		Num	ber of m	netaphases exami	ined		2 Abnorm												
- B-	Cell Therapy																			
- ia-	Pre HSCT-1		Numb	ber of m	netaphases with a	bnormalities														
- ŵ	Transplant-1		Com	plex ka	ryotype	⊙ No	-	Monosomal	karyotyp	pe				[⊙] No	-					
ġ.	Day 100-1		(3 or	inore a	ibnormalities)	 Yes 		(>=2 autoso 1 autosoma	I monosi	vmo				O Yes						
- à-	Followup-1							+ at least 1	structura	a abn	ormali	1 ()								
÷.	Diagnosis-2		Trans	scribe ti	he complete karyo	type?		● No												
ja-	1st line-2							 No Yes 	۲											
- ÷	Pre HSCT-2							- 105			_									
- in-	Transplant-2		Ka	aryotype	B:						0									
- ia-	D 100.0																			
	Day 100-2																			
- ů-	Followup-2		le le	ndicate	below those abno	rmalities that have	been ev	aluated and wh	ther the	y wer	e Abs	ent or	Preser							
			-			rmaities that have		aluated and who		N	umbe	d	Additi	nal detai	Is		 	FISH analysis		
	Followup-2		-		below those abno	rmaillies that have				N	umbe	d	Additi (chror		ls ffected,			FISH analysis		
	Followup-2 Diagnosis-3		F	Row A		rmailties that have				N	umbe	d	Additi	nal detai	ls ffected,		 , ,	FISH analysis	*	
*	Followup-2 Diagnosis-3 1st line-3		4 []	Row A	ibnormality t(15;17)	rmailies that have				N	umbe	d	Additi (chror	nal detai	ls ffected,			FISH analysis		
	Followsp-2 Diagnosis-3 1 st line-3 Pre HSCT-3		۶ ا	Rovs #	lanormality 1(15;17) 1(8;21)					N	umbe	d	Additi (chror	nal detai	is ffected,			FISH analysis	w.	
	Followsp-2 Diagnosis-3 1st line-3 Pier HSCT-3 Transplant-3		4 (1)	Row 4	ibnormality t(15;17)					N	umbe	d	Additi (chror	nal detai	Is flected,			FISH analysis	. 4	
	Followsp-2 Dagenesi-3 Tal Ine-3 Pre HSCT-3 Transplant-3 Day 106-3		4 (1)	Row #	lanormality 1(15;17) 1(8;21)					N	umbe	d	Additi (chror	nal detai	is ffected,			FISH analysis	w.	
	reformo-2 Organisma-3 Per HSCT-3 Transfatef-3 Day 196-3 Fedroup-3		·	Row A	ibnormality t(15;17) t(8;21) inv(16):t(16;16)					N	umbe	d	Additi (chror	nal detai	Is ffected,			FISH analysis	. 4	
	Follows-2 Dagenes-3 talies-3 Textile-3 Per HSCF3-3 Transplant-3 Day 100-3 Follows-3 Dagenes-4		4 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20	Row A	Lifs;17) t(8;21) inv(16)t(16;16) abn 11q23 t(9;11)					N	umbe	d	Additi (chror	nal detai	is ffected,			FISH analysis	9 9 9	
	Followsp-2 Dagress 3 Triens 3 Pre HSCT-3 Transplant-3 Day 106-3 Followsp-3 Diagress 4 Triens-4		100 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 000	Row A	ibnormality ((15;17) inv(16)1(16;16) abn 11q23 ((9;11) i(11;19)					N	umbe	d	Additi (chror	nal detai	is flected,			FISH analysis	* * *	
	Follows2 Daparene-3 Tanaplane-3 Tanaplane-3 Day 100-3 Follows-3 Diaprese-4 Tal Iline-4 Per HSCT-4		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Row A	ibnormality t(15;17) t(8;21) inv(16)t(16;16) abn 11q23 t(9;11) t(11;19) t(10;11)					N	umbe	d	Additi (chror	nal detai	Is flected,			FISH analysis	× × ×	
	Followsp-2 Dagenesis 3 tol Ine-3 Per HSCF3 Transplant3 Day 100-3 Followsp-3 Dagenesis 4 Hill Ine-4 Per HSCF4 Transplant4		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	Row A	ibnormality ((15;17) inv(16)1(16;16) abn 11q23 ((9;11) i(11;19)					N	umbe	d	Additi (chror	nal detai	Is flected,			FISH analysis	* * *	
	reforeuro 2 Disprese 3 Ver HECT-3 Transplant-3 Day 196-3 Federeuro 3 Dispress 4 Ver HECT-4 Transplant-4 Day 196-4			Row A 1 2 6 3 6 6 6 8 6	ibnormality t(15;17) t(8;21) inv(16)t(16;16) abn 11q23 t(9;11) t(11;19) t(10;11)					N	umbe	d	Additi (chror	nal detai	is ffected,			FISH analysis	× × ×	
	Follows-2 Dageness-3 talies-3 Teatignes-3 Teatomp-3 Dageness-4 talies-4 Per HSCT-4 Teanuplen-4 Teanuplen-4 Day 100-4 Follows-4			Row A 2 2 2 3 2 5 2 6 2 7 2 8 2 9 4	kbnormality k(15;17) k(8;21) nrv(16)t(16;16) babn 11q23 ((9;11) k(11;19) k(10;11) k(6;11) Dther abn 11q2					N	umbe	d	Additi (chror	nal detai	is ffected,			FISH analysis	4 4 4 4	
	rdinovo2 Disprese3 Terminet3 Per HGC53 Tanapiset3 Dargoso54 Hitleo4 Per HGC14 Tanapiset4 Day 1064 Falosop4 Dagoso50			Row A 1 2 2 2 3 4 5 6 6 8 8 8 8 8 9 8 10 6	Life(17) ((8):21) mv(16)1(16)1(16)16) abn 11(23) ((9):11) ((11)19) ((11)1) ((11)1) ((5):11) 20ther abn 11(2) 20ther abn 11(2)	1				N	umbe	d	Additi (chror	nal detai	Is ffected,		0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [FISH analysis		
	Follows-2 Dagenes-3 triles-3 Tempter-5-3 Tanapter-5-3 Dagenes-4 triles-4 Per HSCT-4 Tanapter-4 Per HSCT-4 Tanapter-4 Per HSCT-4 Tanapter-4 Dagenes-5 triles-5			Row A 1 2 3 4 4 5 6 6 6 6 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	(15;17) ((8;21) (9;16)(16;16)(16;16) (9)(16)(16;16) (11;19) ((11;19) ((11;19) ((10;11) ((10;11) ((10;11) ((10;11)) ((10;11) ((10;12)) ((10;12)) ((10;12)) ((10;12)) ((10;12))	1				N	umbe	d	Additi (chror	nal detai	Is ffectied,		0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [FISH analysis		
	rdowo-2 tatine-3 transitiet-3 Transitiet-3 Tansitiet-3 Tansitiet-3 Tansitiet-3 Tansitiet-4 Tansitiet-4 Tansitiet-4 Tansitiet-4 Tansitiet-4 Tansitiet-4 Tansitiet-4 Tansitiet-4 Tansitiet-4 Tansitiet-5 Tan HotCF-6			Row A 1 2 5 3 4 2 5 6 6 6 6 7 6 8 6 9 6 10 8 11 8 12 8	Life(17) ((8):21) mv(16)1(16)1(16)16) abn 11q23 ((9):11) ((11)19) ((11)1) (((11)1)(((11)1)((((11)1)((((11)1)((((11)1)(((((11)11)	1				N	umbe	d	Additi (chror	nal detai	is ffected,		0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [FISH analysis		
<u> </u>	Follows2 Daparene.3 Taranglare.3 Day 160.3 Taranglare.3 Day 160.3 Follows2 Daparese.4 tal Im4 Per 45CF.4 Taranglare.4 Per 45CF.4 Taranglare.4 Follows.4 Sectors.4 Follows.4 Sectors.4 Taranglare.5			Row A 1 2 4 2 5 6 6 6 6 9 6 10 8 11 8	(15;17) ((8;21) (9;16)(16;16)(16;16) (9)(16)(16;16) (11;19) ((11;19) ((11;19) ((10;11) ((10;11) ((10;11) ((10;11)) ((10;11) ((10;12)) ((10;12)) ((10;12)) ((10;12)) ((10;12))	1				N	umbe	d	Additi (chror	nal detai	finited,		0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [FISH analysis		
	rdowo-2 Organisa-3 Ine HBC1-3 Tananjata-3 Day 196-3 Folowa-3 Dagense-4 Val Ine-4 Pie HBC1-4 Tananjata-4 Day 196-4 Folowa-4 Dagense-5 tal Ine-5 Tananjata-5 Day 196-5			Row A 1 8 2 8 3 8 4 8 5 8 6 8 6 8 9 9 10 8 11 8 12 8 11 8 12 8 11 8 12 8 11 8 12 8 13 18 14 18 14 18 15 18 16 18 17 18 18 18	Liboormality (1(5;17) (1(8;21) (1(6):(1(6):(1(6):(1(6):(1(6):(1(6):(1(6):(1(6):(1(1(1(16))))))))))	1				N	umbe	d	Additi (chror	nal detai	is ffected,		0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [0 [PISH analysis		

If however in your results you have found any that do not appear on this list, there will be another RQG underneath, where you can enter them:

25	17/	monosomy 17		*						-
	abn 1									-
	t(1;2	-								-
				· · ·						
28	triso	my 8	[~						~
analyse	ed tha	netic abnormalities been It are not listed above		O Yes	0		 		 	
analyse	ed tha le beli have :	tt are not listed above ow those cytogenetic abn already filled the table abo	ormalities that ha	Ves Ves	ed and v		esent. d above		 	
Indicat	ed tha le beli have :	it are not listed above	ormalities that ha	• Yes	ed and v	whether they w ies analysed t Abnormality	esent. d above		 	
analyse	te beli have	tt are not listed above ow those cytogenetic abn already filled the table abo		Ves Ves	ed and v normalit ent		ssent. d above]	 	
Indicat If you I	te beli have	tt are not listed above ow those cytogenetic abn already filled the table abo		Ves Ves	ed and v normalit ent		esent. d above]	 	

which you can access by answering Yes to the Question "Have cytogenetic abnormalities been analysed that are not listed above".

Molecular Markers

Same as the Cytogenetics' Form, but instead you first have to answer Present or Absent:

	Diagnosis-1 2010/10/10 (AML)										
- m	← ✓ Centre-MedAB Selection (876 - Med-B)		/isit:			Diagn	nosis-1			eForm:	
	 Primary Diagnosis (1 to 6) 2010/10/10 (AML) 		/isit Dat			2010	/10/10			eform Date:	
			aborato				selected			cionn Date.	
	Molecular Markers		aburau	ny.		None	selecieu				
	D Haematological Values										
	D'haematological values		Mol	ecular I	Markers						
	1st line-1			ooului i							
1			_								
1	Cell Therapy		Centre	 Identification (CIC) 	 Hospital Unique Patient Number (UPN) 		Uniqu Code	e Identi (UIC)	ification		
1	Pre HSCT-1		876		47984ggfg		10001	165	Med-A		
1	Transplant-1								Med-B		
-	Day 100-1										
-	Followup-1		Ĺ						i		
1	Diagnosis-2	Diag	nosis	AMI & C	Related Precursor Neoplasms	_					
1	1st line-2 Pre HSCL2			PHILE OF							
-				Molecular	markers, overall result		Ŧ				
÷.	Transplant-2	In	dicate be	slow those m	arkers that have been evaluate	d an		or Pres	sent		
	Day 100-2	In			arkers that have been evaluate	2 Prese	ere Absent				All the burger of the
	Day 100-2 Followup-2		Row	Molecular I	Aarker	2 Prese	nt ere Absent Int Internet of present		sent Molecular marker description	Þ	Allele burden (%)
	Day 100-2 Followup-2 Diagnosis-3	1.	Row 1	Molecular I AML1-E	Aarker FO	2 Prese	nt ere Absent			Þ	
	Day 100-2 Followup-2 Diagonosis-3 I si Ine-3	1. 2.	Row 1	Molecular I	Aarker FO	2 Prese	nt ere Absent Int Internet of present			Þ	
	Day 100-2 Followy-2 Diagnosis-3 1 li Ine-3 Pre HSCT-3	1.	Row 1	Molecular I AML1-E	Aarker FO YH11	2 Prese	nt ere Absent				
	Day 106-2 Followpy 2 Diagnosis-3 Tal files-3 Pre HSCT-3 Transplant-3	1. 2.	Row 1 2 3	Molecular I AML1-E1 CBFB-M PML-RA	Aarker FO YH11	2 Prese	nt present			Þ	
	Day 196-2 Followp-2 Diagnosis-3 1st Ine-3 Pre HSC1-3 Transplant-3 Day 196-3	1. 2. 3.	Row 1 2 3 4	Molecular M AML1-ET CBFB-M PML-RAI	Asrker FO YH11 R rrangement	2 Prese PE	ere Absent			Þ	
	Day 100-2 Foliowp-2 Diagnosis-3 1 til Ine-3 Pre HSCT-3 Transplant-3 Day 100-3 Foliowp-3	1. 2. 3. 4. 5.	Row 1 2 3 4 5	Molecular I AML1-E1 CBFB-M PML-RAI MLL-rea MLLT3(A	Asker FO YH11 R rrangement XF9)-MLL		sen Absent)• •	
	Day 106-2 Followp-2 Diagnosis-3 18 Ion-3 Pire HSCT.3 Transplant-3 Day 100-3 Followp-3 Diagnosis-4	1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6.	Row 1 2 3 4 5 6	Molecular M AML1-E CBFB-M PML-RAI MLL-rea MLLT3(A MLL-PT	Aaker FO YH11 R R rrangement AF9)-MLL D		ere Absent			je je je	
	Day 196-2 Followp-2 Diagnosis-3 1st line-3 Pre HSC1-3 Transplant-3 Day 196-3 Followp-3 Diagnosis-4	1. 2. 3. 4. 5.	Row 1 2 3 4 5 6	Molecular M AML1-E CBFB-M PML-RAI MLL-rea MLLT3(A MLL-PT	Asker FO YH11 R rrangement XF9)-MLL		sen Absent			je je je je je	
	Day 196-2 Followpe 2 Diagnoses-3 Tal files-3 Per HSCT-3 Tansplant-3 Day 190-3 Followpe-3 Diagnoses-4 Tal file-4 Per HSCT-4	1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6.	Row 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Molecular M AML1-E CBFB-M PML-RAI MLL-rea MLLT3(A MLL-PT	Asrker FO YH11 R R F9)-MLL SF9)-MLL SF6)-MLL		ere Absent			je je je	
	Day 196-2 Followp-2 Diagnosis-3 Lat lan-3 Per HSC1-3 Tanaplant-3 Day 100-3 Followp-3 Diagnosis-4 Tat line-4 Per HSC1-4 Tanaplant-4	1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7.	Row 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Molecular M AML1-E1 CBFB-M PML-RAI MLL-rea MLLT3(<i>J</i> MLLT3(<i>J</i> MLLT4(<i>J</i> ELL-MLI	Asrker FO YH11 R R F9)-MLL SF9)-MLL SF6)-MLL		nt present present or present			je je je je je	
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	Day 196-2 Followp-2 Diagnosis-3 1st line-3 Pre HSC1-3 Tanaplant-3 Day 196-3 Followp-3 Diagnosis-4 1st line-4 Pre HSC1-4 Transplant-4 Day 196-4	1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9.	Row 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Molecular M AML1-ET CBFB-M PML-RAI MLL-rea MLLT3(A MLL-7T(I MLLT4(A ELL-MLL MLLT1(I	Astker FO VH11 R R F9)-MLL O AF6)-MLL - INL)-MLL		are Absent			               	
₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩₩	Day 196-2 Followp-2 Diagnosis-3 Ital Ion-3 Pre HSCT-3 Transplant-3 Diagnosis-4 Ital Ion-4 Pre HSCT-4 Transplant-4 Day 100-4 Followp-3	1. 2. 3. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10	Row 1 2 3 4 5 5 6 7 8 8 9 0. 10	Molecular II AML1-ET CBFB-M PML-RAI MLL-rea MLLT3(4 MLLT3(4 ELL-MLL MLLT4(1 MLLT1(1	Aater FO VH11 R RP9-MLL AF6)-MLL - INL)-MLL (AF10)-MLL		ere Absent ent seen or present or or or or or or or or or or or or or or o			k P P P P P P	
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	Day 196-2 Followp-2 Diagnosis-3 1st line-3 Pre HSC1-3 Tanaplant-3 Day 196-3 Followp-3 Diagnosis-4 1st line-4 Pre HSC1-4 Transplant-4 Day 196-4	1. 2. 3. 4. 5. 6. 7. 8. 9. 10	Row 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Molecular M AML1-ET CBFB-M PML-RAI MLL-rea MLLT3(A MLL-7T(I MLLT4(A ELL-MLL MLLT1(I	Aater FO VH11 R RP9-MLL S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S S		are Absent			p p p p p p	

Again, like above, if your results are not included in the listed ones, you are given the option to add them underneath.

Involvement

In the Involvement Form, instead of a screening question you are first selecting the organ assessed and then whether it was involved or not:



The other difference is that instead of having a separate RQG for those that are not listed, you are offered a few options of "Other Involvement" to select from(codes 775 and 776), and you can then type them in the field provided underneath, called "Specify other organs involved":

Organ or site examined		Was it involved?	Dominant / primary or additional /metastatic	Biopsy	is indication for transplant	
Other involvement (Prim) 👻	~	Yes 🔻		• •	-	
Drgan or site examined		Was it involved?	Dominant / primary or additional /metastatic	Biopsy	Involvement is indication for transplant	
Ŧ		-		-	-	
sectiv other organs involved		ł				
secify other organs involved		ł				
secify other organs involved		ł				

Non cell-based treatment

If you answer Yes to this screening question, this Form will be active in the "1st line" Visit. This is where any Pre-HSCT Treatment(s) is/are recorded and it is again disease dependent (for certain diseases it is not required). First you provide the date it started and then its sequential number:

+ .					
T	iagnosis-1 2010/10/10 (NHL)	Visit	1st line-1	eForm:	Non cell based Treatment
T	st line-1	Visit Date	2011/02/25	Date treatment started	2011/02/25
	Haematological Values	Laboratory:		Date treatment staned	2011/02/25
	Non cell based Treatment	Laboratory:	None selected		
_ ∰ - C	ell Therapy)
🗐 - 🏓 P	re HSCT-1	Treatment	t of the primary disea	se	
<u></u> в- т	ransplant-1		ll therapy or HSCT		
ji⊫ D	ay 100-1				
- 👘 - F	ollowup-1	Centre Identificati	ion Hospital Unique Patient	Unique Identific	ation
_∰- D	iagnosis-2	Code (CIC) 876	Number (UPN) 97894646541	Code (UIC)	
_i∰- 1	st line-2	0/0	3/034040341	1000100	Med-A
<u>ф</u> Р	re HSCT-2				Med-B
<u>а</u> -т	ransplant-2				
. i D	ay 100-2				
B- F	ollovup-2				
. D	iagnosis-3				
B- 1	st line-3				
B P	re HSCT-3	Date started	2011/02/25 💌 🖌	(partial date allowed)	
	ransplant-3	(yyyy/mm/dd)	•		
. D	lay 100-3	Sequential num	nber of this treatment		Ψ.
Б. Б	ollowup-3	(counted from E	Diagnosis, or last HSCT if applicable)	1 First	
T D	iagnosis-4			2 Second	
T	st line-4	Reason for thi	s treatment	3 Third 4 Fourth	
E P	re HSCT-4		- 0	5 Fifth	
T	ransolant-4		Other reason, specify	6 Sixth 7 Seventh	
T	lav 100-4		Other reason, specify	8 Eighth	
-				9 Nineth 10 Tenth	

Please read the following Chapter for more details.

PLEASE NOTE: this question is *Disease dependent* (certain Working Parties do not consider it a requirement).

<u>1st line (Pre-HSCT) Visit – Non-cell based Treatment Form</u>

As continued from above, after you answer the Date Started and the Sequential Number, you are taken to the Drugs RQG. On a clinical note, this is where you indicate whether the patient has been treated before the treatment procedure (transplant or cell therapy). This will be the case for practically all patients (unless, for example, the diagnosis is AML, where this is not a requirement). However if it is precursor lymphoid neoplasm you should complete it. For more information on this, please refer to our Manual:

https://www.ebmt.org/ebmt/documents/med-ab-forms-manual

on sections like "Pre-HSCT Treatment" or "First Line Therapy".

PLEASE NOTE: for certain diseases, this Question is not a requirement and will therefore be skipped. Moreover, for certain cases there could be NO 1st line treatment given, in which case you simply answer No to the screening question mentioned in the previous chapter.

Schedule QuickView ×	Elle View Tools Help Database :EBMT_Test Role :DataEntry User :Asterios Kasmiris
- MedB_PreProd/c0876/1000160	8. ⇔ 🖶 🕄 ← → 🕄 曼 🗙 🟠 🗟 🕫 🔍 📖 🔯 📼 🔹 🖗 ⊨ ⊨ 🔎
Registration 2018/10/30 (876 97894646541)	
i)- ✓ Diagnosis-1 2010/10/10 (NHL)	Treatment Modality
- 1st line-1	Drugs or chemotherapy Includes immunosuppression for aplastic anaemias or other non maignancies
Haematological Values	
Non cell based Treatment	1 No 2 Yes ours only
Cell Therapy	Adjuvant (HSCT done in adjuvant-setting)
	Neoadjuvant chemotherapy
- Transplant-1	
Day 100-1	Tyrosine kinase receptor antagonist
- Followup-1	· @
- Diagnosis-2	
in- 1st line-2	
Pre HSCT-2	Drugs synonyms
Transplant-2	
Day 100-2	ChemoDrug Start date End date Ongoing 1.
si- Followup-2	Drug resistance Number of cycles Dose of drug Units of measurement Type of delivery
Diagnosis-3	Diag resistance e runner or cycles Date of alog units of measurement in type of derivery
in- 1st line-3	ChemoDrug Start date End date Ongging
e Pre HSCT-3	ChemoDrug Start date End date Ongoing 2.
Transplant-3	Drug resistance Number of cycles Dose of drug Units of measurement Type of delivery
a Day 100-3	Dirgressicatice rutinities of cycles Dose of utrig. Of the sourcement in type of derivery
a Followup-3	Chemo Drug Start date End date Ongoing
🔝 - Diagnosis-4	Chemo/Drug Start date End date Ongoing 3.
et- 1st line-4	Drug resistance Number of cycles Dose of drug Units of measurement Type of delivery
Pre HSCT-4	Chig resistance in remote or globe Date of stray units of measurement in type in demoty
- Transplant-4	
- Day 100-4	ChemoDrug Start date End date Ongoing 4.
H- Followup-4	Drug resistance Number of cycles Dose of drug Units of measurement Type of delivery
a- Diagnosis-5	The second
+- 1st line-5	
B- Pre HSCT-5	
al- Transplant-5	
1 Day 100-5	
ti- Followup-5	Animal origin
ni Diagnosis-6	
al- 1st line-6	Other chemotherapy
	1

If you answer Yes to the question "Drugs or Chemotherapy", you will then be asked for the drugs administered, but if you answer No, the section Treatment Modality of this Form will be skipped and you will be taken to the Other Modality section underneath.

PLEASE NOTE: on top of the Drugs RQG there is a hyperlink that should take you to our document "Med-AB List of Drug Names and Synonyms":

Ď	<u>Drugs synonyms</u>	
	Chemo/Drug	Start date
1.		· · ·
	Drug resistance	Number of cycles Dose of drug Units
	_	
	Chemo/Drug	Start date
2.		-

where you can find alternative names for drugs depending on the country they are used, along with their codes for MACRO. The list also includes **Protocols** (and their codes) and the drugs they are consisted of.

You can also find the same document on the EBMT website, under the Registry- Data Collection:

https://www.ebmt.org/ebmt/documents/med-ab-list-drug-names-and-synonyms

PLEASE NOTE: although the **Protocols** can be used in the Non Cell-based Treatment, they should <u>not</u> <u>be used</u> when reporting the **Conditioning** (preparative regimen), as in the conditioning the doses and their units of measurements are also required, which cannot be indicated just by selecting the protocol name. For more details on the Conditioning, please read the corresponding section in the Transplant Visit Chapter further down.

The Drugs RQG offers you a range of options for reporting:

	Chemo/Drug		Start date	End date	Ongoing
1.		-			-
	Drug resistance	Number of cycles Dose of d	rug Units of measure	ment Type o	f delivery
	- O			-	

But note that not all drugs will be available, as it will depend on the type of form you are reporting (MedA or MedB), the type of treatment (for example, in conditioning the dose and unit of measurement are activated), the Disease, etc.

This form's following section, Other Modalities, offers a selection of other types of treatments like Total Body Irradiation (TBI), Total Lymph node Irradiation (TLI), Surgery, Phototherapy, etc.

Other modalities			
Immunosuppression			
Radiotherapy (not TBI)	Radioth site	erapy	
Enzyme replacement therapy			
Total bound and a local data (T11)			
Total lymph node irradiation (TLI)			_
Surgery	Surgery	type	
Phototherapy	- O		
Lymphocytopheresis	- O		
Plasmapheresis	- O		
Other treatment			
Other - please specify			

At the end of a treatment you also need to provide its **Best Response**, but it's again disease dependent:

Other treatment Other - please specify	× (i)		
Best response Date 1st CR after first line treatment was Date assessed	s achieved	•	
Criteria used for the evaluation	 WHO criteria RECIST critera 		

Pre-HSCT Visit (Mobilisation / Collection Form)

The main Question that is mandatory in this Visit is the HSCT Type (allogeneic / autologous):

HSCT type	AllogeneicAutologous	~					
Cell collection in th	e patient for	autolog	ous trans	splants			
Source of stem cells	(check all	that apply)	1				
Bone marrow (BM)		O No O Yes	~	Number of BM collection	ons	۲	
Peripheral blood (PB)		 No Yes 	~	Cells mobilised	O No Yes		
				Number of mobilisation	n courses		
Cord blood (CB)		 No Yes 	<i>~</i>				
							음 수 수 음

Note that the section underneath has to do with autologous transplants, so by selecting Allogeneic this whole section will be skipped. What is more, depending on the Source of Stem Cells chosen, corresponding forms will become active. For example, the form Collection:



where you may record any cells' or genes' Manipulation, Mobilisation details, etc.

Transplant Visit

The first 2 questions of the first Form (HSCT basics) are mandatory (marked in Red font):

HSCT date and sequence	Year	2013 🧹
Date of HSCT 2013/08/08 💌 🖌	Age at HSCT	23.8
Chronological number of HSCT for this patient		
This section to be filled in only if this is the second of	or subsequent HSCT for this patient	
Date of last HSCT before this one		
Type of last HSCT before this one	· ·	
Was last HSCT at different institution?	No 🔘	
CIC of different institution if known	Yes	

Then follows the section on Multiple Treatment Programs, and then, if you are reporting an Allogeneic treatment, follows the question about Multiple Donors:



where if you answer Yes, you are asked for the number of donors.

PLEASE NOTE: for a single treatment you can have multiple donors providing 1 or more products each, or you can have 1 donor providing 1 or more products, and there can be any possible combinations. For example, you can have 2 donors: the 1st providing BM and PB and the 2nd one providing cord blood. This is the reason why there is a separate question, found in the form Donor Registration, where you are asked for the number of products:

Number of products			
Donor donated different stem cell products for this transplant	● No ● Yes	Number of stem cell products donated	2 3

The *Transplant Visit* can have a range of forms that may or may not get Activated depending on the case you are reporting.

The form **Disease Status Malignancies** is used to record the status of the disease <u>at</u> HSCT. You will be taken to the corresponding section of this form depending on the disease you have selected.

The HSCT Prep Infusion Form is where the Conditioning (Preparative Regimen) is recorded.

PLEASE NOTE: it is Mandatory to report the drug names individually, along with their Dose and Unit of Measurement (as opposed to Pre-HSCT Treatment, where you only provide either individual drug names or Protocols).

The **Patient Status** form appears at the end of *every* visit (except the Registration one), as you need to answer whether the patient is alive, dead or lost to follow up. For more information on this form, please refer to the chapter of this manual called: "Navigation (how to continue or finish a registration)".

PLEASE NOTE: the Patient Status form of the Transplant Visit (i.e.: Day 0), besides the options Dead or Alive, there is also a 3rd option for patients who die after conditioning has started, but before the treatment was performed, should also be reported. (MACRO users should register those patients

entering the date of death as the date of HSCT. It is understood that this is not the date of HSCT since the transplant was never done. When you finish entering the planned transplant you will be asked for the Patient Status: please select the option "**Died before cell infusion started but after preparative regimen was initiated**").

If all of the forms of a Visit have no Missing items (or otherwise marked; e.g.: Warning, OK Warning, etc.) a green tick appears on the left of the visit (please see the screenshot on the left side below). If there is at least one form that has at least one missing item then the whole visit is marked as Missing too (screenshot on the right below).



For more information on options of labelling of a question/form/visit and the hierarchy in which they appear, please refer to the chapter "How to use the Schedule QuickView" of this manual.

Day 100 Visit

For the implemented **time restrictions** on when to report the Day 100, please refer to the chapter "Navigation (how to continue or finish a registration)" of this User Guide.

In the Subject Visit Schedule you scroll down until you see the last Form called Patient Status in the most recent **Transplant Visit**:

MedE_PreProd3/c0200/1000001	Registration 200.6546846456 2018/12/03	Diegnosis-1 AML 2011/11/11	1st line-1	Cell Therapy	Pre HSCT-1	Transplant-1 Allograft 2012/12/12)	Followup-1	Diagnosis-2	1st line-2	Pre HSCT-2	Transplant-2	Day 100-2	Followup-2	Diegnosis
HSCT basics						Allograft 2012/12/12									
Performance status				۲		×		-							
Disease Status Malignancies						~		\mathbf{N}							
Cytogenetics		Abnormal			8				8						
Nolecular Markers		×							•						
Involvement		~							•						•
Comorbidity and serology						~	8	1							
Donor registration						Related		/							
Allograft product						65465654									
Patient HLA						× .	/								
HSCT Prep Infusion						Alo	5								
Patient status						Alive									

You then double-click on this Form to open it (the above screenshot has the form marked with a Green Tick (OK), but it can be other symbols appearing instead), which should look like this:

Schedul	e QuickView ×	Eile	View	Tools	Help				Databas	se :EBMT_Test R	Role :DataEnt	ry User :Asterios Kas	smiris	
⊡ ∨ N	edB_PreProd3/c0200/1000001 ^	8 €	ə 🖶			4 🖬 🗙	10 10	• •• I		. 🖂 🔹 🖗	/ 🚌 🕨	► ₽		
- iĝ-	Registration 2018/12/03 (200 6546846456)	_					1.00		0.00 1.00					
- (B-	Diagnosis-1 2011/11/11 (AML)	Vis	it.			Transpl	ant-1		eForm	10	Patie	nt status	~	
	1st line-1												•	
÷.	Cell Therapy	Vis	iit Date			2012/12	2/12		eform	Date:				
- (a-	Pre HSCT-1	La	borator	yr.		None se	lected							
- ġ- i	Transplant-1 2012/12/12 (Allograft)	\subseteq												
	V Performance status						Pa	itient sta	itus					
	🗸 Disease Status Malignancies													
	IF Cytogenetics		Centr	a Identificat	ion Notoit	I Lloique Dat	and .			nique Identification	n Media or M	adD	1	
	III Molecular Markers			(CIC)		il Unique Pat r (UPN)	nger m		C	ode (UIC)	in initials of in	000		
	Involvement		200		654684	6456			10	000001	Med-4	L. C.		
	V Comorbidity and serology										Med-E	1		
	V Donor registration (Related)													
	V Allograft product (65465654)												2	
	V Patient HLA		Datio	nt etatue	at the end	of this visi								
	V HSCT Prep Infusion (Allo)				ut the end	or una via	•				(Date of death if leath happened		
	🗸 Patient status (Alive)			Dead								round transplant		
÷.	Day 100-1			Alive						×		- 6		
- ia-	Followup-1		0	Died befo	re cell infusi	on started bu	t after prepa	rative regimen v	was initiate	bd				
÷.	Diagnosis-2													_
	1st line-2			le le	the abse	nce of ano	ther diagn	osis or trans	plant,					
- (à-	Pre HSCT-2			th	e next fol	low up visi	t would be	e						
÷.	Transplant-2			1	'he 100) day a	ssessm	ient visit	t					
÷	Day 100-2													
- Br	Followup-2			w	hat do you	want to do r	wxt?		-					
- @-	Diagnosis-3				a market and	ta entry for th		- 4	<u> </u>					
	1st line-3					day 100 ass					-			
- (i)-	Pre HSCT-3							borter interval du	we to deat	h of the patient or i	loss to follow	10		
- @-	Transplant-3					-,								
- @-	Day 100-3													
- @-	Followup-3													
	Diagnosis-4													
	1st ine-4			In	structions	aill annear b	ere after vo	u have made a	aelection	above				
÷-	Pre HSCT-4			_							_		_	
÷.	Transplant-4			L L	Jse F6	or click	on icon	-Save an	d clos	e current e	eForm-			
÷.	Day 100-4													
÷	Followup-4													
ġ-	Diagnosis-5 v			L										

The option already chosen will be the one you had selected the last time you had entered data on this form (normally the option shown above). You can now see that since you are at the Transplant Visit, you are presented with the option to record the Day 100 report (for example, the Annual Follow Up is not available, since you need to record a Day 100 before you report an Annual Follow Up). You then select the option "Enter the Day 100 Assessment" and you can see that the text below, that advises you what you need to do next, has changed:

the next follow up visit would be	
The 100 day assessment visit	
What do you want to do next?	
Finish data entry for this patient	
Enter the day 100 assessment	
Enter a day 100 follow up with a shorter interval due to death of the patient or loss to follow up	
nstructions will appear here after you have made a selection above	
Use F4 or click on icon -Save and move to next eForm on schedule- to]
Use F4 or click on icon -Save and move to next eForm on schedule- to	
nstructions will appear here after you have made a selection above Use F4 or click on icon -Save and move to next eForm on schedule- to go to the next follow up Visit	

Once you Save and move to the next form, the Day 100 Visit will have been activated. You will be asked whether you want to move to the next visit or not like normally.

The first form that gets activated is the **Response to Main Treatment**, as it is an important part of the follow up procedure, followed by the form **Reconstitution**, which is a Day 100 requirement. Then you report any Complications (GvHD and/or Relapse) and/or Additional Treatment (chemotherapy, radiotherapy, cell therapy) in the form **Follow up events**. Note that certain forms either will or will not be activated, depending on your answers in the forms above. The form **Patient Status** will appear at the end of each type of a visit created in MACRO.

Annual Follow Up Visit

For the implemented **time restrictions** on when to report the Annual Follow Up, please refer to the chapter "Navigation (how to continue or finish a registration)" of this User Guide.

In the Subject Visit Schedule you scroll down until you see the last Form called Patient Status in the **Day 100 Visit**:

Elle View Iools Help	i 🗈 🖻 🔹 🖉 🔗		IT_Test Rol	e :DataEntry Us	ier :Asterios Kasir	niris	\sim						
Med8_PreProd3/c0200/1000001	Registration 200 6546846456 2018/12/03	Diagnosis-1 AML 2011/11/11	1st line-1	Cell Therapy	Pre HSCT-1	Transplant-1 Allograft 2012/12/12	Day 100-1 Alive 2013/03/22	Followup-1	Diagnosis-2	1st line-2	Pre HSCT-2	Transplant-2	Day 100-2
Cytogenetics		Abnormal				•	\neg					•	
Molecular Markers		× .											
Involvement		~											
Non cell based Treatment							2013/02/22	-					
Cornorbidity and serology						~		-					
Donor registration						♥ Related							
Allograft product						65465654							
Patient HLA						~							
HSCT Prep Infusion						Allo							
Chimaerism								1-					
Last disease status							~ 1						
Patient status						Alive	Alive						

You then double-click on this Form to open it (the above screenshot has the form marked with a Green Tick (OK), but it can be other symbols appearing instead), which should look like this:

Schedul	e QuickView ×	Eik	⊻Jew	Tools	Help		Datab	ase EBMT_Te	ist Role :DataE	Entry User :Asterios Kasmir	ris
	edB_PreProd3/c0200/1000001	8	-					a 🖬 🖕		 > > >	
ė.	Registration 2018/12/03 (200 6546846456)	· •					6 ⁰⁴ 16 1		0 0 0		
- b-	Diagnosis-1 2011/11/11 (AML)		isit Date		2013/03/22		eform Date	o.			
ġ.	1st line-1		aboratory:		None selected						
ġ.	Cell Therapy	1									
j.	Pre HSCT-1										
	Transplant-1 2012/12/12 (Allograft)					Datio	ent status				
- à-	Day 100-1 2013/03/22 (Alive)					Falle	int status				
	✓ Response to main treatment 2013/03/17										
	V Reconstitution 2012/12/18		Centre Ider Code (CIC	ntificati	tion Hospital Unique Patient Number (UPN)			Unique Identific Code (UIC)	cation MedA or	MedB	
	✓ Follow up events 2013/03/22		200		6546846456			1000001	· Mer		
	Performance status								Mei		
	✓ Non cell based Treatment 2013/02/22								- Mei	0-6	
	- Comorbidity and serology										
	IF Chimaerism	<u> </u>									
	✓ Last disease status		Patient st	atus a	at the end of this visit					Date of death if	
	Patient status (Alive)		0-							death happened around transplant	
	Followup-1		 Dea Ally 		 Image: A start of the start of						
- a-	Diagnosis-2		- Ally	,						× 0	
ė.	1st line-2										
	Pre HSCT-2	<u> </u>									
ģ.	Transplant-2				n the absence of another of he next follow up visit wo		or transplant,				
ģ.	Day 100-2			_	The annual follow		-14				
ġ.	Followup-2				i ne annual tollow	up vis	sit				
ġ.	Diagnosis-3			w	What do you want to do next?						
ġ.	1st line-3				,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,						
	Pre HSCT-3			(Finish data entry for this pati	ent	-		•		
ġ.	Transplant-3			(Enter an annual follow up						
ģ.	Day 100-3			(Enter the next sequential tra	nsplant					
	Followup-3				Enter a new diagnosis indica						
	Diagnosis-4				Enter an annual follow up will	th a shorter	r interval due to dea	ath of the patie	nt or loss to folio	ow up	
ģ.	1st line-4										
ģ.	Pre HSCT-4										
ġ.	Transplant-4			Int	nstructions will appear here af	ter you ha	ve made a selecti	ion above			
ģ.	Day 100-4			U	Use F6 or click on i	con -S	ave and clo	se curre	nt eForm-		
ġ.	Followup-4			Ĩ							
	Diagnosis-5										
ġ.	1st line-5										
ġ.	Pre HSCT-5										
- T-	Transplant-5										
										844	▶ 🔛

You can now see that, since you are at the Day 100 Visit, you are presented with the option to record an Annual Follow Up report (for example, the Day 100 one is not available, since it can only be recorded right after the Transplant Visit).

In the form **Follow Up Events** you are, like in the Day 100 form, asked to provide any Complications (GvHD and/or Relapse) and/or Additional Treatment (chemotherapy, radiotherapy, cell therapy). However, you are also asked some questions that did not appear in the Day 100 form (e.g.: Secondary Malignancy or Conception questions are also asked). The form **Performance Status** appears here too, as it did in the Transplant visit. The form **Patient Status** will appear at the end of each of the following visits created in MACRO: Day 0, Day 100 and Annual Follow Up, but please note that the end of a Day 0 would be the Transplant Visit.

Modifying existing data

The diagnosis forms in the Diagnosis Visit are 2: the 1st one includes codes from 1 to 6, which is also the default (it appears always automatically), but if you select diagnosis code 6 or higher, then a 2nd form is created, where you would record its sub-classification with its specifics. If you create by mistake a Primary Diagnosis Form for codes >6 (e.g. BMF), but you actually wanted to report a Multiple Myeloma (which is code 4.Plasma Cell Disorders), you can *MARK* the already created "Primary Diagnosis >6" as Not Available:

Missing
 Not Available
 ▲ Warning

You can mark it as such from the SCHEDULE (not the Schedule QuickView) by right-clicking on it:

	Ħ	
		Open
		Freeze
		Unfreeze
		Lock
		Unlock
		Not Available
		Missing
==	==	Create/Edit eForm SDV
		Change All Planned question SDVs to Done

PLEASE NOTE: when you do that, the option SAVE will be activated, and then after you save the Form, it will be marked as OK (Green Tick) and relabelled to the correct Diagnosis (e.g. MM).

In terms of changes you make to a specific question, there is a symbol to indicate the number of changes found next to each question that has been modified:

Changes to Data	
- One	
I Two	
Three+	

The above symbols will appear along with the Status symbol of the question (e.g.: OK, Warning, Missing, etc.):



In addition, you can right-click on the actual question and you select the option View Audit Trail:

Performance	status	
Patient assessment a	t Transplant	
Weight (kg) 85.0 Height (cm) 222		BMI 172 Anne 247 V
Performance system	View Audit Trail View Warning	score
Kamofsky Lansky ECOG	View Inform Message Comments Notes	
Not evaluate	DCRs SDV Mark	cally strenuous activity
	Change Status	spable of all self-care inted self-care; confined to bed mpletely disabled; cannot carry on any self-care

which will then open a window, where you can see who made what change, when, etc.:

Patient assessment at	Transplant								
	🗐 Question In	formation							
Weight (kg) 85.0 🧹									
Height (cm) 222	Name	Patient I	neight (cm)						
	Value	222							
erformance system									
Karnofsky			~		_				
	Properties	Warnings	Commen	ts Audit Ti	ail				
Lansky ECOG	Value	Status	UserName	Time Stamp	Database Time Stamp	Validation Message	Comments	Reason for Change	Reason for Overrule
Not evaluated					Time stamp			Change	Overrule
	225	OKWarning	AK	2019/02/28 13:05:36	2019/02/28 13:05:41	This is greater than the expected maximum [220]			l am just testing
	220	ОК	AK	2019/02/28 13:04:55	2019/02/28 13:05:05				
Patient ABO blood group after a previous allo	222	Warning	cr	2019/02/23 22:15:54	2019/02/23 22:15:54	This is greater than the expected maximum [220]			

To remove all existing responses on a Form, click on the Form status icon at the top right (this icon is only visible after saving the Form) and select "**Clear all data on a Form**".

View Tools Help						
<u>View T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp			Training Role :DataE		asmiris	
	🖬 🗶 🏠 🗟 🦉		🖂 🔹 🖗 🖗	🕨 🕨 🔍		
sit:	Transplant-2	eForm:	Donor r	egistration	~	
isit Date	2014/02/02	eform Date:				Create/Edit eForm SDV Mark Clear all data on eForm
aboratory:	None selected			-		
Donor Registration	on					
Identification of donor or CBU			Danas Danistra	_		
		i	Donor Registry WMDA / BMDW code			
Y76			WMDA / BMDW code			
			WMDA / BMDW code			
			WMDA / BMDW code			
Y76	No Yes		VMIDA / BMDW code			
V76 Same donor Same donor as for	Yes		UMIDA / BNDW code			
Y76 Same donor Same donor as for a previous transplant Number of the first tra	Yes Insplant where	Family	Udlik registry MIDA / BINDW code			
V76 Same donor Same donor as for a previous transplant Number of the first tra the same donor was u	Yes Ves		Contractionary Contraction			
V76 Same donor Same donor as for a previous transplant Number of the first tra the same donor was u	Yes nsplant where as done	Family	•			

If this option appears greyed out, either the Form is locked or frozen, or you do not have the required permission. You cannot clear questions that are locked, frozen, or derived from values on another Form.

Complex Cases (examples)

Centre/Site with Access to a Subject that was created in another centre

In the case where a Site/Centre is granted with access to a Subject record that had a treatment in a different Site, after you are given access, you have to provide the information of your own Site in the first Form called **Centre**.

In the Subject Visit Schedule you scroll down until you see the last Form called Patient Status in the most recent Follow-Up Visit:



and you double-click on it to open the actual Form:

What do you want to do next?	
Finish data entry for this patient	
Enter an annual follow up	
Enter a subsequent transplant	\checkmark
Enter a new diagnosis indication for a subsequent transplant	
Enter an annual follow up with a shorter interval due to death, lost to follow up, char	nged centres
Instructions will appear here after you have made a selection above	
Use F6 or click on icon 'Save and close current eForm'	

You can see in the above Form that you are presented with certain options:

- Finish data entry for this patient
- Enter an annual follow up
- Enter a subsequent transplant
- Enter a new diagnosis indication for the next transplant
- Enter an annual follow up with a shorter interval due to death, lost to follow up, changed centres

PLEASE NOTE: the options above may vary depending on the type of the Visit you are. For example, at the end of a Day 0 registration you are presented with the following options:

100 day Assessment	
Vhat do you want to do next?	
Finish data entry for this patient	
Enter the day 100 assessment	V
O Enter a day 100 follow up with a shorter interval due to death of the patier	t or lost to follow up
instructions will appear here after you have made a selection above	
Use F4 or click on icon 'Save and move to next eFo to the next follow up Visit	orm on schedule' to go

Accordingly, in a Day 100 Visit the 2nd from the above options will not appear as it is not applicable.

EXAMPLES:

If you were given access to this Subject because you are the new Follow-Up Site for this patient, then you select the option "Enter an annual follow up".

If you were given access to this Subject because you are the new Site for a subsequent treatment (transplant or cell therapy), then you select the option "Enter a subsequent transplant" for an HSCT or "Enter Annual Follow Up" for a Cell Therapy. This means that the subsequent treatment is performed for the same indication diagnosis.

If you were given access to this Subject because you are the new Site for a subsequent treatment, but there has been a new diagnosis in the meantime, then you select the option "Enter a new diagnosis indication for the next transplant".

For how to use the option "Enter an annual follow up with a shorter interval due to death, lost to follow up, changed centres", please refer to the section "Navigation (how to continue or finish a registration)".

Finally, the option "Finish data entry for this patient" is used for when you are ending the registration of a Visit and you want to Save and Close the record, as you have no more reporting to do (for example, the previous treatment (transplant or cell therapy) took place 4 days ago, and you will re-visit the patient record in 100 days to report the Day 100). This option is not applicable for the scenario we are describing in this section, as it will already be chosen when you access the Patient Status form. You will need to select it *after* you finish your current reporting.

How to record a Simultaneous Diagnosis

What defines whether a Diagnosis is considered a Main Indication or an Other, Non-Indication Diagnosis is whether a treatment was given to treat it or not. In some cases, an HSCT is performed to treat more than just one diagnosis, where both of the recorded Diagnosis would be considered as Main Indication, even if they were diagnosed with a few years of difference. This is known as **Simultaneous Diagnosis**. In MACRO, after you finish the patient's information in the Registration Block and you move to the Diagnosis Visit, the first Form you fill in is the Centre and then you move to the "**Primary Diagnosis**" Form. On the very top of this form, you are first asked this:

Primary Disease Diagnosis				
Is the treatment you are about to enter for more than one diagnosis?				
No Yes	Age at diagnosis			
Select the disease(s) for which this treatment was performed				
Disease diagnosis	×			
Date of diagnosis	Partial date is allowed			

If you answer No, you will be allowed to record only 1 diagnosis. If you answer Yes, then you will first have to provide all the information related to the 1st Diagnosis (that is, all the Forms that will be Active, depending on the Main Indication you chose), and at the end of the last Form of the 1st Diagnosis Visit, after you Save and Move to the next Form, the 2nd Diagnosis will appear:

Schedul	e QuickView ×	Elle View Tools Help Database :EBMT_Test Role :DataEntry User :Asterios Kasmiris	
🖃 - 🌻 N	edB_PreProd/c0201/Not registered		
÷.	Registration 2018/10/24 (201 6546846416)		
	Diagnosis-1.2010/10/10 (Mantle,BL,DLBCL/BL)	Visit: Diagnosis-1 [2] eForm: Primary Diagnosis (1 to 6)	
	- V Centre-MedAB Selection (201 - Med-B)		-
	✓ Primary Diagnosis (1 to 6) 2010/10/10 (Mantle,BL,DLBCL/BL)	Visit Date 2011/11/11 Date of diagnosis 2011/11/11	
	🗸 Stage	Laboratory: None selected	
	# Haematological Values		
	- V Biochemistry	Indication for the transplant or cell therapy - Primary Diagnosis	
- b -	Diagnosis-1[2] (PCD)	Subclassification of the malignancies	
	Ecentre-MedAB Selection	Subclassification of the manginancies	
	Primary Diagnosis (1 to 6) (PCD)		
	III Stage	Centre ID Hospital Unique Patient Unique Identification Code (CIC) Number (UPN) Code (UIC)	
	D Haematological Values	201 6546846416 Med-A	
	D Biochemistry	Med-B	
- B-	1st line-1		
÷	Cell Therapy		
- B-	Pre HSCT-1		
- @-	Transplant-1	Primary Disease Diagnosis	
- @-	Day 100-1	Enter the information for the second diagnosis	
- B-	Followup-1	Enter the mormation for the second diagnosis	
÷	Diagnosis-2	© No	
- B-	1st line-2	Ves Age at diagnosis 31.8	
- @-	Pre HSCT-2	Select the disease(s) for which this treatment was performed	
÷	Transplant-2		
÷	Day 100-2	Disease diagnosis Plasma cell disorders 👻 🗸	
÷.	Followup-2	Date of diagnosis D011/11/11 - A Partial date is allowed	
-	Diagnosis-3	Date of diagnosis 2011/11/11 V Partial date is allowed	
÷.	1st line-3	Non malignancies	
÷	Pre HSCT-3	The rest of the eform will be skipped.	
- B-	Transplant-3	Additional information on non-malignancies will be requested in the next eform	
- B-	Day 100-3		
÷.	Followup-3	Other diagnosis - please specify	
<u>_</u>	Diagnosis-4	Other diagnosis - please specify	
da -	1et line 4		

PLEASE NOTE: the 1st Diagnosis is labelled "Diagnosis 1", but the 2nd Diagnosis will be labelled "Diagnosis 1[2]". This is because they are both part of the First Diagnosis Block. Equally, you can have a Simultaneous Diagnosis at the 3rd block, which would be labelled "Diagnosis 3" & "Diagnosis 3[2]".

Create New Subject		×		
Please select a study and site for the new subject. Show site o				
Studies:	Sites:			
Donor_OR MedB_PreProd	Swiss Test centre	•		
	Site Code - s8401 Site Description - bsbmt	•		
Open new subject				
	OK Cancel			

Special case for users with **Access to more than one Site or Study**

PLEASE NOTE: depending on your Role, you might have access to more than just one Subject Group (e.g.: Study Coordinator in a Working Party or Data Manager in a National Registry) or Site.